
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Regular M&CC Public Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty St., Cumberland, MD 

 

DATE:    June 21, 2022 

 

 

OPEN SESSION – 6:15 P.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Statement of closed meeting held June 21, 2022 

Presentations 

1. Recognition of Employee Retirements 

Director's Reports 

(A) Engineering 

1. Engineering Division monthly report for May, 2022 

(B) Public Works 

1. Maintenance Division monthly report for May, 2022 

(C) Fire 

1. Fire Department monthly report for May, 2022 

(D) Police 

1. Police Department monthly report for May, 2022 

(E) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

1. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for May, 2022 



Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Work Session Minutes of February 15, 2022, the Work, Closed, and Regular 

Session Minutes of March 1, 2022, the Closed Session Minutes of March 8, 2022, and the Work 

and Regular Session Minutes of March 15, 2022 

Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance No. 3921 (2nd and 3rd readings) - authorizing execution of a deed to convey 

certain surplus property that is the former site of the Memorial Hospital to the 

Cumberland Economic Development Corporation 

New Business 

(A) Resolutions 

1. Resolution R2022-04 - approving an application to the MD Department of Housing and 

Community Development for Community Legacy 2022 Projects totalling up to 

$150,412.57 

2. Resolution R2022-05 - approving an application to the MD Department of Housing and 

Community Development for 2022 Strategic Demolition Funds in the amount up to 

$500,000  

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 27,022 - authorizing execution of a Consent Agreement with Potomac Edison 

Company providing terms by which the City shall be allowed to cross and/or occupy 

Potomac Edison transmission rights-of-way with a combined sewer overflow (CSO) 

pipeline in conjunction with the 78" Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to CSO Storage 

Project (19-16-S) 

2. Order 27,023 - authorizing execution of a Resilient Maryland Program Grant Agreement 

with the MD Energy Administration (MEA) regarding the City's receipt of up to 

$100,000 to complete a study to analyze the feasibility and public benefit of a potential 

microgrid for the City; and to authorize the City Comptroller to accept the grant funding 

3. Order 27,024 - declaring certain Fire Department equipment to be surplus and 

authorizing it to be scrapped or donated 

4. Order 27,025 - authorizing the City Comptroller to commit and pay $20,000 a year for 

three (3) years to the Canal Place Concert Series Project 

5. Order 27,026 - adopting a revised City of Cumberland Fund Balance Policy, effective 

June 21, 2022 

6. Order 27,027 - authorizing the Mayor to execute a services agreement with Turnbull, 

Hoover & Kahl, P.A. for the provision of audit servides for Fiscal Years 2022-2024 for 

the amounts not to exceed $114,975 for Year 1, $121,975 for Year 2, and $128,975 for 

Year 3 



7. Order 27,028 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute all FY23 Employment 

Agreements for part-time employees 

8. Order 27,029 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute all Seasonal Employment 

Agreements for the 2022 spring/summer season 

9. Order 27,030 - authorizing execution of Outdoor Dining Leases for the use of the public 

right-of-way for outside cafe dining for one (1) year with Mezzos, City Lights American 

Grill and Bar, Embassy Theater Corp., Uncle Jack's Pizzeria and Pub, and Baltimore 

Street Grill 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  



File Attachments for Item:

. Engineering Division monthly report for May, 2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

2008 05-08-S Evitts Creek CSO Upgrades Phase III 

(gravity sewer under railroad)

Replacement of CSO line connecting 

Evitts Creek Pump Station effluent with 

gravity line that parallels the Canal 

Towpath.  Said gravity line is being 

replaced under project 17-03-S(1).

Design NO CHANGE -  WRA received notice from CSX on 7/7/21 

stating that they would no longer allow access in yard for any 

investigative or rehab activities. This decision was reviewed 

and confimed by Alex Saar (PE in Jacksonville office) on 

10/29/21. City now assessing legal route of obtaining access to 

site.

MDI 11/24/2021

2008 06-08-S Interceptor Sewer to Evitts Creek 

Pump Station Phase IV

This is the sewer along Evitts Creek 

upstream of the Pump Station. Project is 

to evaluate existing line and determine if 

repair or replacement is best option.

Design NO CHANGE - Received engineering report from Gwin Dobson 

& Foreman on 1/18/22. Requested MDE Grant funding, using 

the report as a reference, in February. Awaiting notice of 

funding appropriations later this year.

MDI 6/9/2022

2014 04-14-WWTP Sludge Screening Study/Design Study to select the best alternative to keep 

rags out of the recently cleaned and 

modified digester because the 

modifications will make it impossible to 

revive rags in the future.

Design NO CHANGE Need/Benefit of the project is being reevaluated, 

and for now the project is on hold.   Design is complete and the 

project will remain on this report for the time being.

RLS 4/2/2018

2014 19-14-M Greene Street Complete Street Plan Planning Study for Greene Street Planning NO CHANGE - The  Design Report from Alta Planning + 

Design was submitted and presented to the Mayor and City 

Council.   The plan to start work on Construction Funding 

Applications has been delayed because of the Baltimore Street 

Project, which would have been competing for the same funds.  

This project still needs to be done and should be a priority in the 

future. 

RLS 6/1/2017

2015 9-15-M Potomac River Walk The Study Phase of this project is being 

done through the Cumberland MPO and 

consists of a Walk / Trail for pedestrians 

and bikes along the Potomac River 

between Wills Creek and the YMCA

Study NO CHANGE -This project has been turned over to Canal 

Place.  Engineering Services for Design were received.  

Recommendation from the committee was to award to CEC.

RLS 8/9/2019

2015 16-15-M 2015 Fall Tree Removal Hazard Tree Removal Construction UPDATE Contractor has completed project.  This will be the PTE 4/29/20162015 18-15-S CSO Water Quality Analysis Base line data collection for analysis of 

future CSO needs after CSO Storage is 

on line.

Planning NO CHANGE Project continues. Staff are taking regular 

scheduled stream samples for e-Coli analysis at this time.  

Rainy days (once a month) are the target for sampling at this 

time.

RJK 6/3/2022

2016 12-16-M Baltimore Street Access 

Improvement - Final Design

The purpose of the New Baltimore Street 

Town Center project is to reopen and 

improve Baltimore Street, which is 

currently configured as a pedestrian mall, 

to vehicular traffic while maintaining 

elements of the mall.

Design UPDATED - The final package is being reviewed MDOT Senior 

Management and MDOT Federal Aid.  MODT has requested 

product data sheets for each Proprietary Product Form that 

was submitted.

JRD 6/6/2022

2016 17-16-M Stage Renovations at Liberty Street 

Stage

Replace wood stage with Concrete Design NO CHANGE - This project would be unnecessary if the 

Baltimore Street Access project is executed. The project will 

remain on this list until the Baltimore Street project moves to 

construction.

RLS 5/15/2019

2016 18-16-BR John J. McMullen, Bridge No. A-C-01 

Repairs

Bridge Repair Design UPDATE -  State in lieu of Federal Aid approval letter received 

on 5/23/22. Cuirrently soliciting engineering proposals for 

design services associated with the repairs. Proposals due on 

6/29/22

MDI 6/9/2022

2016 19-16-S 78" Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to 

CSO

78" Pipeline to CSO tank in accordance 

with Consent Decree

Design NO CHANGE - The USACE is requiring the City to perform a 

Safety Assurance Review of the project. The City is 

coordinating the SAR requirements with USACE and further 

info will be provided.

RLS 1/26/2022

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

Page 1 of 7

6/15/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

2017 2-17-FPM Flood Control Encroachment removal 

Project

The City as the Local Sponsor of the 

Flood Control Project is expected to 

maintain the easements along the Flood 

Control Project, however the area along 

Wills Creek and other areas were never 

given any comments until the Corps of 

Engineers standards changed.  

Completion of this project is necessary to 

allow the City to get a Satisfactory rating 

on its annual Flood Control Inspections.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project has been delayed because of other 

work, but must be done.  A tree removal project has been bid 

out and a contractor selected to do the work of removing trees 

in the encroachment area.

RLS 7/11/2018

2017 3-17-M Route 51 Bridge 12" Waterline 

Replacement

Replace water line on bridge as part of 

SHA Bridge Deck Project

Complete NO CHANGE - This project is complete and will removed from 

this list next month.

RLS 11/23/2021

2017 18-17-M Maryland Avenue Development

This is not and Engineering Project, but 

included here to cover future department 

work with the development.

Design NO CHANGE - Phases 1 & 2 of the Cumberland Gateway 

project has moved into construction. The Department will 

support future phases for stormwater management reviews and 

traffic design support.

RLS 3/26/2021

2017 31-17-W Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water 

Main Replacement

Prior to designing the water main 

replacement a more detailed Water Model 

analysis of the City's system will be done 

to make sure the issues are being properly 

addressed.  Design will follow.

Design UPDATE - Construction began on 3/14 on Altamont Terrace 

and will continue through August.

RLS 3/17/2022

2018 08-18-BR Cumberland Street Bridge 

Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Design UPDATE - The Federal Funds have been approved to allow 

the project to go into Final Engineering. MDOT should be 

issuing notice to proceed in the coming days.

RLS 3/17/2022

2018 09-18-BR Baltimore Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Design UPDATE - The project is waiting for the USACE to issue the 

408 permit which should occur in April. The ROW certification 

was completed in March. 

RLS 3/17/2022

2018 22-18-M Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Contract documents for the FY20 garbage 

and recycling collection bid process

Planning NO CHANGE  Proposals received proposals to extend the 

contract for FY23.  Noble Environmental (Mountainview 

Landfill) submitted an acceptable 1-year extension back in 

December.

Burgmeier's Hauling provided a proposal for hauling curbside 

trash and recycling for FY23.  This proposal was accepted by 

M&CC in January. 

 

RJK 6/3/2022

2018 25-18-BR SHA Project: Replacement of MD 51 

Bridge Deck

Replace the water line under the industrial 

blvd bridge under a MDOT bridge 

rehabilitation project

Construction Refer to project 3-17-W - Project will be removed next month RLS 10/11/2018

2018 26-18-M Ridgeley Levee System Certification

2018 31-18-WFP Pine Ridge Water & PUC Rate 

Issues

Project involves determining a path 

forward regarding the supplying of PA 

residents with water

N/A NO CHANGE - City staff continues to work through issues with 

PA regulators about water issues

RLS 1/28/2020

2018 32-18-FPM Rehabilitation Assistance for Flood 

Damages to Flood Risk Management 

Projects

Request USACE to make repairs or 

provide funding to address flood control 

issues

Planning NO CHANGE - The USACE has denied financial support due 

to the flood control being in an unacceptable condition. The City 

is looking to enter the SWIF program to receive aid to get 

financial support for construction.

RLS 10/12/2018

2018 43-18-BR Fayette Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Planning NO CHANGE - Funding for design work has been identified. 

The City is working on a quit claim deed with CSX to allow the 

project to move into the Federal Bridge program.

RLS 1/26/2022

2018 44-18-BR Washington Street Bridge 

Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 

structure.

Planning NO CHANGE - Studies have been returned and subject to CSX 

negotiations.

RLS 8/5/2019

Page 2 of 7

6/15/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

2019 5-19-M Virginia Ave Lot Demolition Remove two structures and retaining walls 

at 6, 8 and 10 Virginia Ave.

Construction Bidding NO CHANGE - The grading plan has been approved by ASCD 

and the project has been turned over to Code Enforcement for 

demolition

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 7-19-WFP Filter Building Pilot Study Perform a study to evaluate the potential 

to replace current filter building with a new 

membrane/GAC building in the future. The 

City is required to perform a pilot study to 

validate the technology we are proposing 

to use.

Study UPDATE - Project is waiting for authorization from the M&CC 

on how to proceed.

RLS 3/17/2022

2019 10-19-M Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the residential 

properties within the City Limits which 

include blighted properties and recent 

demos. 

Construction NO CHANGE- Contract underway (No work through winter 

months)

DTG 6/3/2022

2019 11-19-M Non Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the Commercial and 

Public Owned Properties within the City 

Limits.  To include water tanks, City Hall, 

Public Safety and several others.

Construction NO CHANGE- Contract underway (No work through winter 

months)

DTG 6/3/2022

2019 14-19-M WWTP RMP Compliance Services RMP Compliance for OSHA 29 CFR 1910 Planning UPDATE 3-yr audit due July 2022 RJK 6/3/2022

2020 2-20-M Frederick St Parking Garage Repairs Repairing a spalled section of slab on 

grade in Frederick St parking garage, as 

well as looking into sealing all concrete 

driving surfaces

Planning NO CHANGE- Researching proper repair systems for spalled 

concrete in parking garages. Working with Street Dept. to 

determine if city forces can make repairs.

MDI 1/24/2020

2020 6-20-S Sanitary Sewer Lining Assessment  Performing a cost assessment on relining 

(CIPP) all sanitary sewer lines within city.

Planning NO CHANGE - Based on list of "high risk" lines provided by 

sewer dept, have developed a preliminary cost estimate. 

Awaiting updated list from most recent cleaning and cameraing 

prior to moving forward with project.

MDI 3/30/2020

2020 9-20-M Constitution Park Fill Disposal Assessing potential clean fill dump sites 

for Public Works

Design UPDATE - Public works dept. is nearing completion of fill 

placement at Site #1 (behind field). Site #2 behind pool house 

has been cleared and the perimeter has silt fence in place. Fill 

may be deposited in this site upon final completion of Site #1.

MDI 6/9/2022

2020 12-20-RE Long Field Upgrades - Phase 1 Improvements to Long Field Concession 

and Restroom area. Upgrades include 

electrical improvements.

Construction UPDATE - Carl Belt has completed about 95% of the work 

under this contract. Only items remaining include concession 

stand window upgrade, new picnic table, and outfield grass 

treatment. Project should be completed by end of June.

MDI 6/9/2022

2020 13-20-WWTP CSO Nine Minimum Controls Annual 

Review

A requirement of our LTCP and NPDES 

Report to look at these controls annually

UPDATE  - NMC report spring 2022; to be finalized in June. RJK 6/6/2022

2020 14-20-M Carver Building Repairs Project to repair damage to the Carver 

Building

2020 16-20-M Queen City Drive ADA Improvements Project will include upgrading sidewalk for 

ADA compliance along Queen City Drive 

at corners of Bedford and Frederick 

Streets, below McMullen Bridge.

Construction UPDATE - Harbel and sub-contractor Thomas Construction are 

nearing completion of project. All concrete has been installed. 

Some earthwork and crosswalk installation remain.

MDI 6/9/2022

2020 17-20-WWTP CSO Long-Term Control Plan 

Projects/Schedule Review

Correspondences with MDE regarding the 

LTCP Projects and the Consent Decree 

(CO) end date: October 1, 2023.

N/A NO CHANGE-  All jurisdictions and AquaLaw  to met with MDE  

on the CO extension process on November 5, 2021.  MDE 

requires a letter with the official request and supporting 

documentation as next step.  This Letter was sent November 

19.  

RJK 6/6/2022

Page 3 of 7

6/15/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

2020 29-20-S Locust Grove Force Main & LaVale 

Water Main Replacement

Joint project between Allegany County 

Public Works & LaVale Sanitary 

Commission to replace the force main 

from the new Locust Grove Pump Station 

and replace water main to LaVale.

2020 30-20-SWM Grow West Facility Expansion SWM Review for proposed expansion of 

Grow West MD Facility @ the industrial 

park.

Construction NO CHANGE - Contractor continues construction of expansion. 

City monitoring SWM situation at incomplete stage, as 

rainwater collection tanks have not been installed. 

MDI 10/8/2021

2021 2-21-WWTP Influent Screening System Upgrade Design and replacement of a new influent 

screening system at the headworks of the 

WWTP.

Construction UPDATE - Carl Belt was the low bidder for the construction 

phase of this project, at $1.4m. Contract is to be awarded at the 

next M&CC meeting. Lead times for major equipment are near 

30 weeks, so construction will not begin for at least 6 months.

MDI 6/9/2022

2021 4-21-W Route 220 20" Water Main 

Replacement

Project to replace the 20" water main in 

Route 220. The water line from I-68 to the 

State Prison is currently owned by the 

City. Discussion are being held between 

the City and County to partner on the 

project or transfer the asset to the County.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project is in the planning stages in 

conjunction with Allegany County.   

RLS 4/21/2021

2021 6-21-RE Constitution Park Wading Pool Filter 

Renovation

Replace the cracked filter and other 

improvements to the mechanical building 

equipment for the wading pool.

NEW -    

2021 7-21-WFP 2021 ECWC Watershed Timber Sale 2021 ECWC Watershed Timber Sale NO CHANGE - The timber sale bids have been returned and 

an award issued to American Hardwood Industries.

RLS 7/27/2021

2021 8-21-WWTP SCADA System Integration Solicit bids for a qualified Industrial Control 

System Integrator to complete the 

Water/Wastewater SCADA System 

integration.

NO CHANGE - This is a project to secure integrator services to 

support both the Water Filtration Plant and Water Reclamation 

Facilities   

RLS 4/21/2021

2021 9-21-M Municipal Service Center Security 

Fence

Installation of a security fence at the 

Municipal Service Center

Construction UPDATE - Long Fence began fence installation on January 

26th and finished by the end of February. A final inspection of 

the work was completed on March 7th. The City is now waiting 

for a final invoice from Long Fence to complete the project.

JAT 3/9/2022

2021 10-21-M Undocumented Rights-of-Way Decide how undocumented rights-of-way 

should be dedicated and what form of 

dedication is need to prevent the rights-of-

ways from accidentally being sold.

Study UPDATE -  Evaluating using GIS to track City owned property, 

easements, parcels used for right-s-of-way, etc.  May need to 

request a legal opionion on several issues.

JRD 6/6/2022

2021 12-21-WWTP Industrial Pretreatment USPI CWT 

Organics Permit Application

An application to discharge industrial 

wastewater as a Centralized Waste 

Treatment facility (Categorical Permit 

request by existing Significant Industrial 

User USPI) 

Planning UPDATE - Permit issued to USPI, effective date was 

November 22, 2021.

USPI seeking approval for additional CWT wastes in permit.

  

RJK 6/3/2022

13-21-W Fayette Street Water Main 

Replacement and Street Repair

Replacement of watermain in Fayette 

Street from Allegany Street to Luteman 

Road, and the repair/repaving of the street 

as needed.

Construction NO CHANGE - Project required development of an ESC Site 

Plan and SOW. These were created and approved by ACSD 

and MDE on 10/14/21. Construction (using City forces) began 

on 10/18/21. Project will take multiple months to complete.

MDI 10/22/2021

Page 4 of 7

6/15/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

2021 14-21-RE Constitution Park Splash Pad The installation of a splash pad and 

surrounding recreational area in 

Constitution Park.

Planning UPDATE -  Project is to be funded from ARPA. Currently 

working with Daniel Hack from Sparks@Play for final design of 

the pad and equipment. Project will be completed in 2 phases, 

with a local contractor preparing the site, and a separate splash 

pad contractor installing all pad related equipment. Construction 

should be completed prior to 2023 pool season.

MDI 6/9/2022

2021 15-21-W WATER DISTRIBUTION ANALYSIS 

and CIP UPDATE 2021

Water system engineering analysis, 

updated CIP recommendations, 

particularly concerning the Fort Hill 

Reservoir, and Asset Management Info 

for pump stations, PRV Stations and 

water tanks.

Planning NEW - The EADS Group, Inc. was awarded the bid on 

11/16/21. Kickoff meeting was held on 12/1/21.

DTG 1/18/2022

2021 16-21-M Downtown ADA Improvements This project includes the replacement of 

the curb ramps for compliance with the 

latest ADA requirements at the following 

locations: Baltimore/Mechanic intersection 

on the southwest and northwest corners, 

Liberty/Dexter intersection at the 

southeast and southwest corners, 

Centre/Dexter intersection at the 

southeast and southwest corners, and 

Centre/Fredrick intersection on the 

northeastern side.

Planning UPDATE - A preliminary estimate to determine the amount of 

funding needed, will be prepared this summer.

JRD 6/6/2022

2021 19-21-M South Street ADA Improvements This project includes the replacement of 

curb ramps for compliance with the latest 

ADA requirements along South Street 

between Oldtown Road and Industrial 

Boulevard.

Design UPDATE - The bid packge for this project is complete. 

Currently preparing for bidding and discussing timeline and 

funding with CDBG staff.

JAT 3/9/2022

2021 20-21-M Engineering Database Migration This project will implement the migration of 

data from the Engineering Department's 

drawing database and project database to 

the Laserfiche document management 

system including the transfer of the 

scanned images of the Department's 

drawings from the file server into 

Laserfiche and the collection of additional 

metadata for each image.

Planning UPDATE - A process is in place to upload drawings into the 

City's Laserfiche document management system. The existing 

scanned images of the the Eng. Dept. drawings will be 

uploaded into Laserfiche (with additional metadata added to 

each image), as time allows. In the future we will need to 

evavluate possible methods of capturing images of various 

drawings that are either too large to scan or are to fragile to 

scan.  Currently, we are working with MCCi to create a 

database for Engineering projects that will use Laserfiche forms 

to assign new project numbers, and will also automatically 

create a folder for each project in Laserfiche.

JRD 6/6/2022

2021 21-21-WFP Water Allocation Permit Renewal PA 

DEP

The Water Allocation Permit is required to 

be renewed every 25 years. The City will 

use Gwin, Dobson and Foreman to work 

through the permit and establish how 

much flow we can pull from the reservoirs.

Permitting UPDATE-  Application submitted in March. RJK 6/3/2022

2021 22-21-P General City Paving This project paved Merchants Alley 

Parking Lot (Mill/Patch/Overlay) and Kelly 

Road along the southern face of the Grow 

West Facility (Full Depth reconstruct)

Construction COMPLETE JRD 6/6/2022

Page 5 of 7

6/15/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

2021 26-21-FPM Removal of Potomac Industrial Dam 

at Blue Bridge

Project to remove the industrial dam in the 

Potomac River under the Blue Bridge to 

Ridgeley. Water & Land Solutions will be 

setting up a private commercial mitigation 

bank to fund construction. This project is 

related City Project 9-15-M

Planning NEW -    

2021 27-21-T Maryland Ave & Williams St Traffic 

Study

Study to investigate the potential 

realignment of Maryland Avenue at its 

intersection with Williams Street for future 

development in the Rolling Mill area. BBA 

performed the study using CAMPO 

funding.

Study UPDATE - BBA has begun performing traffic counts and 

compiling information. Preliminary results should be presented 

to the City in March.

RLS 1/26/2022

2021 28-21-M Municipal Service Center Pole 

Building

Project to construct a Pole Building at the 

MSC to store equipment.

Design UPDATE -  Design and specs completed. Project was 

advertised for bid starting 1/14/22.

DTG 1/18/2022

2021 30-21-M Sustainable Communities Program 

Renewal

Sustainable Communities Program 

Renewal documentation. The program 

allows the City to access grant sources 

and is required to be updated every 5 

years.

Planning COMPLETE - Plan updates sent to Community Development 

by Dec 7th.   

RJK 3/9/2022

2021 31-21-RE Constitution Park Amphitheater 

Upgrades

Project to upgrade the Constitution Park 

Amphitheater.

Planning UPDATE -  Project is a part of the 5-year park improvement 

plan. Funding ($174,350) approved through ARPA. A site plan 

and RFP have been developed and are being 

reviewed/updated. City staff to perform electrical upgrades, 

while site work to be advertised for bid by end of June.

MDI 6/9/2022

2022 2022-01-UTIL 1-22-M MDE Pre Applications FFY22 FY24 Annual Pre Application Jan 2022 Permitting COMPLETE -  Applications submitted by January 31.  RJK 2/17/2022

2022 2022-02-WTR 2-22-W South Cumberland Water Main 

Replacement Project

Planning UPDATE -  Bids for design services will be returns on 3/31 and 

the preliminary engineering report will be delivered in July.

RLS 3/17/2022

2022 2022-05-WRF 5-22-WRF WRF Head of Plant and Operations 

Building Roof Replacements

Roof replacement Construction NEW - This project was bid using Sourcewell. The roofs will be 

replaced in April/May

RLS 3/17/2022

2022 2022-09-SHLD 09-22-M Cumberland Street ADA 

Improvements

ADA improvements at the intersection of 

Johnson, Cumberland, and Market Streets

Design NEW - 

2022 2022-10-SWM 10-22-SWM Messick Road Development SWM Review and Utility Easement 

Review

Review NEW - 

2022 2022-11-PBLD 11-22-PBLD City Hall/Public Safety Building HVAC 

Improvements

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 

Funded Project to improve the HVAC 

systems of these buildings to improve air 

quality capabilities and system energy 

efficiency.

Design NEW - 

2022 2022-12-PBLD 12-22-PBLD Prisoner Processing Improvements American Rescue Plan Art (ARPA) funded 

project to remodel the prisoner processing 

areas of the Cumberland Police 

Department in the Public Safety Building

Design NEW - 

2022-13-PBLD 13-22-PBLD 19 Frederick Street Building 

Assessment

Feasibility study and building assessment 

for the building located at 19 Frederick 

Street

Study NEW - 

NOTE: Beginning in 2022, the Engineering Department will be migrating to a new project number format.

The new number format places the 4-digit year first, a 2-digit yearly sequence second, and a 3 or 4-character project type code third.

Page 6 of 7

6/15/2022



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No.

(New Format)

Project No.

(Old Format)

Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 

By

Date of 

Update

Capital Projects May 31, 2022

2022 2022-14-MISC 14-22-M Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the residential 

properties within the City Limits which 

include blighted properties and recent 

demos. 

Construction NO CHANGE- Currently in bidding phase, bid openings on 

6/15/22

DTG 6/3/2022

2022 2022-15-MISC 15-22-M Non Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the Commercial and 

Public Owned Properties within the City 

Limits.  To include water tanks, City Hall, 

Public Safety and several others.

Construction NO CHANGE- Currently in bidding phase, bid openings on 

6/15/22

DTG 6/3/2022

2022-16-SHLD Waverly Terrace Retaining Wall 

Replacement

Project to include replacement of retaining 

wall below road between 16 and 24 

Waverly Terrace. Will include installation 

of storm sewer.

Planning NEW -  Currently developing preliminary cost estimate to install 

an inlet or mulitple inlets along Waverly to catch stomwater 

runoff and direct to nearby sewerline. Section of concrete wall 

will also be repaired.

MDI 6/9/2022

Page 7 of 7

6/15/2022



File Attachments for Item:

. Maintenance Division monthly report for May, 2022



















File Attachments for Item:

. Fire Department monthly report for May, 2022











File Attachments for Item:

. Police Department monthly report for May, 2022











File Attachments for Item:

. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for May, 2022











File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of the Work Session Minutes of February 15, 2022, the Work, Closed, and Regular Session 

Minutes of March 1, 2022, the Closed Session Minutes of March 8, 2022, and the Work and Regular 

Session Minutes of March 15, 2022



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, February 15, 2022  

5:00 p.m. 
 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joseph 

George (via Zoom), and Laurie Marchini.   

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Mark Gandolfi, 

City Comptroller; Chuck Ternent, Chief of Police  

 

 Media: Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News; Brian Gowan, WCBC Radio 
 

I. AGENDA REVIEW – FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

 

Mr. Silka called on Mr. Gandolfi to review Ordinance 3909, amending the City’s 

purchasing policy, saying that the Comptroller was more well-versed in this topic.   

 

Mr. Gandolfi handed out and presented a detailed overview regarding changes to the 

purchasing policy and reviewed the highlights: 

 

 No change to concept of $25K or greater needing a M&CC order 

 Lower thresholds changed, lowest being $2500; if under, Department head can do 

due diligence in-house and verify fair price – no more need to vet everything 

through Finance 

 Award of bid can now go to lowest “responsible” bidder 

 

 

Mr. Gandolfi reviewed commodities and services which are exempt from competitive 

bidding and quotes: 

 

 Adding express authorization to use piggyback contracts 

 Sole Source over $25K with requisition from Department head, funding approval 

of the Comptroller, and approval by the City Administrator with final approval by 

Council 

 

Mr. Gandolfi reviewed equipment leases, and clarified as to what capital lease procedure 

looks like in terms of dollar vs. rent, and said leases should be authorized and made in the 

same manner as purchases of supplies, contracts, service, etc. 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

 

Regarding construction contracts, Mr. Gandolfi advised that there will be a revision 

enhancement to emergency procedures to better define a public emergency, while 

removing a component regarding City workforce and competitive bids that was not 

needed.  He added that for commission-based contracts there are no substantive changes. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised on the bidding procedure for preparing Public Works contracts, 

saying that the City Administrator becomes the responsible party for all bidding 

documents.  He advised that the time frame to advertise bids was a little ambiguous, so it 

was revised to say that all bids will be advertised at least one time for no less that five 

days, and removes the maximum days for advertising. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised that there are revisions to advertising procedures regarding bid 

qualifications on the City website, to enhance and clarify the procedures for being 

qualified or disqualified within the award, and states that all mandatories must be met.  

Mr. Gandolfi stated that there is a revision to the acceptance of lowest and best bid to 

better define if a bid is in the best interest of the City. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised that there are no changes to Local Preference.  He also advised that 

there is a new section entitled Change Orders, that addresses one area that has not been 

addressed regarding how the City deals with Change Orders.  He added that there are 

limitations on the Department head regarding costs. 

 

Councilman George inquired about the committee that determined the changes.  Mr. 

Gandolfi advised that it consisted of himself, City Management led by the “then” City 

Administrator, and the City Solicitor. 

 

In answer to a question from Councilwoman Marchini, Mr. Gandolfi reviewed 

commodities and services that are exempt from competitive bidding and quotes from at 

least three suppliers, which are all listed in Section 2-171(e). 

 

Mr. Silka asked if anyone had any questions about the rest of the agenda, other than 

ARPA funds.  There were no questions, but Council commented on Order No. 26,956 

regarding a GOCCP grant, and the good track record of staff in obtaining grants. 
 

   

II. ARPA DISCUSSION – PROJECT PRIORITIZATION 
 

Mr. Silka advised that there had been feedback that Council wanted to discuss allocations, and 

turned it over to Mr. Gandolfi.  

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised that a key component is regarding the $10M revenue loss and how the 

Treasury would like folks to be good stewards of the funding.  He advised that restoring 

government services is a very critical piece, and said the $10M threshold ensures the health of the 

local government. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised on the funds for provision of government services, and explained the 

valuation dates and the funding amounts over four years, saying it is audited each year.  He also 



3 
 

advised that this is primarily General Fund wages.  He also discussed surplus, unassigned fund 

balance, and the flexibility to spend the funds in the best interest of the City. 

 

Mr. Silka discussed public art not being placed in funding, and said they looked at the greatest 

impact and best benefit upon the whole community.  He discussed the Baltimore Street 

renovation, saying it is already a $12M public art project going on, and said that other projects 

had a better bang for the buck and more benefit to the community.   

 

Mr. Gandolfi explained that each department head’s recommendations were taken into 

consideration and ranked, looking at sustainability, greatest impact, and how well it fits within 

ARPA and what the government has asked the City to do. 

 

Council discussed the DDC’s and the CEDC’s need for grants for public art with possibly 

matching funding from the City.  There was discussion about the beautiful art in Frederick’s 

downtown and about how it attracts tourism and gives civic pride, with the opportunity for public 

and private partnerships to help make it happen.  There was a question about the $12M estimate 

for the Baltimore Street project, with Mr. Silka advising that amount is for construction only, not 

the aesthetics of the public art section.  It was noted that below-ground, trees, fountains, etc. were 

part of the original streetscape. 

 

III. HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 

 
Mr. Silka discussed requests for permit and utility connection waiver fees pertaining to Habitat 

Humanity’s construction of a home at 22 Maple Street.  He advised that this is approximately a 

$150K project, with $640 in permit fees, and $3370 in water and sewer tap fees.  He advised that 

in the past the City has waived these for Habitat for Humanity projects.  Mayor Morriss advised 

that he could see no reason to not waive the fees for a 501c3 organization that is making a good 

investment. 

  

IV. CUMBERLAND HOUSING GROUP – JFK APARTMENTS 

 
Mr. Silka discussed water permit and utility connection fee waiver requests pertaining to the 

renovation of JFK Apartments at 135 N. Mechanic Street, saying that this is a $15.8M project, 

with $30 plus $95,177 for permits with no water or sewer tap fees.  There was discussion by 

Council about other housing projects requesting waivers and wanting to be consistent.  They also 

discussed River Bend Court, and there was a suggestion to look into that to see if that project  

received the waiver. 

 

V. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 

 

Councilman Cioni discussed Let’s Beautify Cumberland, and the upcoming Day of 

Caring and Sharing. 

 

There was discussion about Parks and Recreation and the focus of the last meeting being 

the skateboard park.  Mr. Silka advised that they will bring their recommendation to the 

next work session, and said the survey will have a compilation of comments. 

 



4 
 

Mayor Morriss advised that he had spoken with the B.O.E. and said they want to have a 

conversation with M&CC about using their fields and scheduling to make sure leagues 

are using all the parks. 

 

Councilwoman Marchini advised about the Baltimore Street Committee, and said the 

mitigation plan is nearing completion.  She said they would like to have a town hall 

meeting when the plan is printed and handed out to set the tone for businesses and 

building owners.  She added that there will be quarterly virtual meetings during 

construction.  The Councilwoman also spoke about the DDC, and advised about the 

Windows Contest using empty storefronts for non-profits and schools, and said there will 

a public vote on the winners, with cash prizes from grants.  She also noted that the 

Groundhog Day event went well, and said that seven prizes were handed out, and said the 

DDC is working on promoting Black businesses downtown.  She also advised that the 

final plan for Baltimore Street was submitted to MDOT for the final review, and said the 

response should come within the next six weeks, then it goes to Federal Highway.  Ms. 

Marchini provided information about the HPC, saying that Larry Jackson is the new 

Chair, and added that Ruth Davis-Rogers is running things well. 

 

Councilman Frazier advised that the HRC will meet this coming Monday, so he will 

report on that at the next work session.  He added that the HRDC meets next month, and 

said he could not make the last WMSR meeting. 

 

Mayor Morriss advised that Saturday, March 5th is the Hooley Plunge, and said it’s going 

to be a tremendous event this year with the focus being on the late Dr. McCagh and all 

the good work that he did in the community.  The Mayor said he hopes everyone comes 

out and shows their support.  He also stated that all is going well with the WMSR, and 

stated that tickets for the next Polar Express are up now and selling.  He mentioned the 

different events coming for the scenic railroad, including the Ice Cream Train, Dinner 

Train, Murder Mysteries, etc.   

 

On the Economic Development front, Mayor Morriss stated that he believes there is a 

renaissance taking place in the community, and said he believes the foundation of that is 

the Baltimore Street Access Project and opening up the downtown mall.  He said he 

believes there is a lot of really good work being done both for Baltimore Street and the 

Maryland Avenue Project, and some other things he will talk about in the future.  The 

Mayor added that there was some good news today on a potential housing investment, 

which will be made public in the near future. 

 

Councilman Frazier wanted to remind everyone about a meeting at the Salvation Army 

Board, and said that the plan is to do kettles as a group in different locations next year 

during the winter holidays. 

 

There was discussion about having someone that works with boys and girls clubs to come 

in and give M&CC an update, and it was mentioned as being a good idea for a 

presentation.  Additionally, they discussed plans for a fundraiser to get musical 



5 
 

instruments and a paid music instructor for the kids.  A proclamation to thank them was 

suggested. 

 

Chief Ternent advised that the Hooley Pub Crawl will be March 23rd, and advised that an 

Order will be needed. 

 

Mayor Morriss noted some construction going on downtown, and wanted to remind 

everyone that you can still get to wherever you want to go, and mentioned LOFT 129, 

Embassy Theatre and the Cumberland Theatre all having events downtown. 

 

Councilman George advised that Planning and Zoning did not meet. 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:07 p.m.   

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 

 

 

 Minutes approved on  ________________ 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Regular Meeting 

City Hall 

 

DATE:    March 01, 2022 

 

 

I. OPEN SESSION – 6:15 p.m. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 PRESENT:  

 Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

 Councilman Joseph P. George 

 Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 President Raymond M. Morriss 

 

Also Present: Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator; Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk; Robert 

Smith, City Engineer; Chuck Ternent, Chief of Police; Shannon Adams, Fire Chief 

 

IV. Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary statement of closed meeting held March 1, 2022 

Mayor Morriss announced that a Closed Session had been held on March 1, 2022 at 5:40 

p.m. and read into the record a summary of that session which is attached hereto and 

made a part of these minutes as required under Section 3-306 (c)(2) of the General 

Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

V. Director's Reports 

Motion to approve the report was made by Councilman George, seconded by 

Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

(A) Administrative Services 

1.   Administrative Services monthly report for December, 2021 



VI. Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes was made by Councilman Frazier, seconded by 

Councilman George, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

1. Approval of the Closed Session Minutes of October 19, 2021, and the Work Session Minutes 

of November 2, 2021 

VII. Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3908 (2nd and 3rd reading) - accepting the bid from EZ Out, Inc. for the 

purchase of surplus properties at 32 Laings Avenue, 105-107 Fifth Street, and 305-307 Fifth 

Street for the total amount of $600 and authorizing execution of a deed to convey the 

properties to EZ Out, Inc. 

Mr. Silka advised that these are properties that were declared surplus and were included 

in the Round II bids, are in a commercial zone, and will be put to commercial use. 

 SECOND READING:  The Ordinance was submitted in title only for its second reading. 

Motion to accept the second reading and move to the third after comment was made by 

Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  

Mayor Morriss called for questions or comments.  Being none, the ordinance moved to its 

third reading. 

 THIRD READING:  The Ordinance was submitted in title only for its third reading and 

was passed on a vote of 5-0. 
 

2. Ordinance 3909 (2nd and 3rd readings) - repealing City Code Sections 2-171 to 2-175 

pertaining to the City's purchasing policy and reenacting them with amendments, and 

enacting Section 2-177 pertaining to Change Orders. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that the policy had not been updated in five years, and said the updates 

were explained in detail by the Comptroller at the last meeting. 

 

SECOND READING:  The Ordinance was submitted in title only for its second reading.  

Motion to accept the second reading and move to the third after comment was made by 

Councilman George, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  

Mayor Morriss called for questions or comments.  Being none, the ordinance moved to its 

third reading. 
 

THIRD READING:  The Ordinance was submitted in title only for its third reading and was 

passed on a vote of 5-0. 

VIII. New Business 

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Mr. Silka reviewed each item on the Consent Agenda, and Mayor Morriss called for 

questions or comments.  Motion to approve Order No. 26,966 only was made by 

Councilman Frazier, seconded by Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 



4-0, with Councilman George abstaining.  Motion to approve remaining Order Nos. 

26,967 – 26973 was made by Councilman George, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and 

was passed on a vote of 5-0.                  

 Order 26,966 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into an Updated Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) with the Family Crisis Resource Center (FCRC) to support police 

overtime in the amount not-to-exceed $19,583 for the provision for security at FCRC during 

supervised visitation and exchange. 

Mr. Silka advised that the City’s officers provide security and are reimbursed at an 

overtime rate by FCRC. 

 Order 26,967 - accepting the estimate from Ganoe Communications for equipment and 

installation costs to upfit four (4) 2022 Ford Police Interceptor vehicles at a cost of 

$25,301.72. 

 Order 26,968 - lifting the provisions of Section 11-113 of the City Code to allow open 

containers of alcohol within a defined area of the downtown mall for the Hooley Pub Crawl 

for the period of March 12, 2022 beginning at 12:00 p.m. and ending at 2:00 a.m. on March 

13, 2022; notwithstanding, that open glass containers shall not be permitted. 

  Mr. Silka advised that there is a map attached with this order describing the allowed area. 

 Order 26,969 - authorizing execution of an Agreement for Legal Services with Kaplan 

Kirsch & Rockwell LLP for the provision of advice and counsel related to issues with CSX 

Transportation related to the City's sewer easement over property owned and used by CSX, 

to be effective retroactive to November 1, 2021. 

 Order 26,970 - authorizing the waiver of permit fees as requested by Habitat for Humanity 

for a new residential build at 22 Maple Street, and Cumberland Housing Group for the 

renovation of JFK Apartments at 135 N. Mechanic Street. 

Councilman George inquired if this Order should be amended to formalize the 

Cumberland Housing Group as being exempt for future requests.  Mr. Silka advised that 

it could definitely be added on at a future date. 

 Order 26,971 - authorizing execution of a Right-of-Entry Agreement, effective March 1, 

2022, with Cumberland Senior Partners, LLC as owners of real property described in a deed 

from Countryhouse LLC to Owner, dated December 1, 2018 (Book 2346, Page 461 of 

Allegany Co. Land Records), to facilitate the rehabilitation of the Baltimore Street Bridge. 

Mr. Silka advised that there are current rights-of-way and easements on this property, and 

said this sets up temporary easements for construction on the bridge which will revert 

back once construction is over. 

 Order 26,972 - authorizing execution of a Donation Agreement with Rose M. Klink for the 

donation of property at 409 S. Central Avenue (Tax ID 22-015141) to the City, and 

authorizing the City's acceptance of the deed and execution of documentation to effect the 

transfer. 

Mr. Silka advised that the City has been looking to acquire this property for some time, 

and said it will be demolished. 



 Order 26,973 - declaring a 1992 Sutphen 90-ft. Aerial Tower Pumper Truck (VIN 

# 1S9A3KFE5N1003933) and a 2004 Chevy Tahoe (VIN #1GNEK13V04J268695) as 

surplus and authorizing them for sale or trade-in. 

Mr. Silka advised that this is the CFD’s old ladder truck and old command truck that are 

out-of-service.  Chief Adams advised this ladder truck had been in service for 30 years. 

IX. Public Comments 

 No Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

 

X. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:38 p.m. 

 

 Minutes approved on _________________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor ____________________________ 

 

 ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk ___________________________ 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, March 1, 2022  

5:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joe 

George, and Laurie Marchini.   

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

Woodring, City Clerk; Robert Smith, City Engineer; Chuck Ternent, Chief of Police; Keira Shilling, 

President, Cumberland Jaycees; Doug Widdows, Skate Park Committee 
 

 

I.         AGENDA REVIEW – MARCH 1, 2022 
 

Mayor Morriss reviewed the Agenda reports and minutes, and Mr. Silka advised on the two 

Unfinished Business ordinances.  Ordinance No. 3908 (2nd and 3rd Readings), accepting the 

bid of EZ Out, Inc. for the purchase of several surplus properties from the Round II bids: 32 

Laings Avenue; 105-107 Fifth Street; and 305-307 Fifth Street for a total of $600, and 

authorizes the execution of a deed to convey the properties.     

 

Ordinance No. 3909 (2nd and 3rd Readings), repealing City Code Sections 2-171 to 2-175 

pertaining to the City’s purchasing policy, and re-enacting them with amendments, and 

enacting Section 2-177 pertaining to Change Orders.  Mr. Silka noted that City Comptroller 

Mark Gandolfi provided a much-detailed review and explanation of the changes at the 

ordinance’s first reading. 

 

Mr. Silka called for any questions or comments regarding the Consent Agenda orders, saying 

that they were pretty much standard business and housekeeping.  Councilman George advised 

that he will be abstaining from the vote on Order No. 26,966, due to the fact that his wife is 

treasurer of the FCRC.  Mr. Silka noted that Order No. 26,967 provides for outfitting four 

Ford Interceptor vehicles recently purchased as police cars. 

 

II.         SKATE PARK LOCATION RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

  

Mr. Silka provided a PowerPoint presentation, and advised that on the November 23, 2021 

meeting, staff asked to look at the project  and come back with recommendations from 

M&CC.  He said an internal working group was formed with City Staff, and advised that they 

met internally a few times to review location options. 

 

Mr. Silka stated that they had met with the skatepark group on January 4, 2022, and said that 

they had posted a survey on several platforms.  He advised that the survey was posted in 

February and contained 6 questions, with 488 total responses across the 4 platforms. The 

consensus of the responses was that 72% are residents of Cumberland, most responding lived 

in either the City, Allegany or Garrett County or WV, most wanted the location to be Jaycee 



2 
 

Field with Constitution Park coming in second, and households mostly had 2 persons 

interested, with the age group being post-high school. 

  

Comments, suggestions and concerns made up the last question, with Mr. Silka advising that 

the majority of the comments were positive and welcoming.  There were fewer negative 

comments that ranged from a waste of money, vandalism/drug use, and money being put to 

better use. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that the skatepark group made the recommendation of Jaycee Field as their 

preferred location, and said the internal working group looked also looked at Jaycee Field, 

along with Mason Sports Complex and Constitution Park. 

Mr. Silka provided background on the benefits of having a skate park, saying that it provides 

a non-traditional form of recreation, interested people must travel to the nearest skate park, 

and added that the venue would provide a tourist attraction as well as a place for events and 

competitions.  Mr. Silka then reviewed the location factors, which include visibility of the 

facility, traffic flow, impact on neighborhoods, accessibility, costs, and several others listed in 

the PowerPoint presentation. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that the design of the park would be done by Spohn Ranch Skatepark of 

Los Angeles, CA, and said the base cost of design and construction will be in the $500K 

range, and said this does not include any site work cost. 

 

Mr. Silka reviewed potential costs, and said a Jaycee Field site would be around $806K, but 

to do it right it could be as high as $1.4M due to parking and road upgrades.  He advised that 

for a Constitution Park site the cost ran around $698K, with Mason being approximately 

$644K.   

 

Mr. Silka reviewed site analysis for each location and the PowerPoint presentation provided 

photos of each site with overlays and explained upgrade costs for the different improvements 

needed.  He noted that a stormwater facility is at the Jaycee Field site that can’t be relocated, 

and said that is one concern for this location.  He said that Constitution Park is their third 

choice, and explained that it would be a little bit easier and cheaper site to construct, but the 

drawbacks include no adequate parking and it not being a synergistic area for a skate park.   

 

Mr. Silka advised that Mason Sports Complex is their top recommendation, said it would be a 

little cheaper to pull off, and explained that the complex is already geared for field activities, 

it has the BMX track next to it, and said it is synergistic with a skate park.  He stated that this 

is a multi-use site for families, and said it’s easily accessible by car, and the complex is 

already a regional asset.  He explained that it meets the largest percentage of site factors, and 

would be the lowest estimated development cost of the three locations. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that the next steps would be for M&CC to review and ask for input from 

the Parks and Recreation board.  He explained that if this project goes forward, there is no 

funding available from the City’s side, and said they would need to find funds.  He advised 

that the County has pledged $250K, and said he would recommend getting a commitment of 

those funds if this goes forward.  Mr. Silka said that $410K seed money has been provided by 

the Community Trust Foundation to allow for fundraising, advised on some sales happening 

and an auction coming up, and stated that there is momentum in the City for various 

fundraising.  He noted that the City still has a $500K to $600K deficit, and said that this is 

queued for a 2023 project which will give time to locate funds and allow Engineering to catch 



3 
 

up.  He added that the worst thing for this project is to approve it now and start building it 

now, as there are already too many big projects in line. 

 

Mayor Morriss commented on the in-depth study Mr. Silka presented and said it hit on the 

key points.  Ms. Shilling questioned about the skate park being located at Mason Sports 

Complex with other projects going on there.  Mr. Smith explained that the 78” pipeline 

project there will not affect the skate park, and he also answered a question from Council 

regarding the tennis courts that had deteriorated, saying there were not sufficient underdrains 

to pull the water away, and advised that if CSX allows the pipeline the courts will get 

refinished and the water will be mitigated.  He added that if Mason Sports Complex is the site 

for the skate park, underdrains would be installed.   

 

It was stated that the Jaycees would support the Mason Sports Complex site.  Mr. Widdows 

stated that Mason Sports Complex is the best site available in the area, and advised that the 

BMX track needs upgraded, too.  He said he knows people that can help with that.  There was 

more discussion about fundraising.  Ms. Shilling and Mayor Morriss both agreed that once 

the location has been established they can get serious about fundraising, and as the project 

develops along with the Jaycees help, the partnership will be marketed and the project will 

move forward as a unified front.  Councilman George stated that they need to do a better job 

of getting the public to recognize that this is a public private partnership and not all tax 

dollars.  He also recommended having the Parks and Recreation board approve the project at 

their next meeting and move forward from there. 

 

Mr. Smith advised about Galaxy Field at Mason that was just replanted because it was a 

stockpile for the CSO tank.  He said it may be taken out and get reconfigured, and wanted the 

soccer community to be aware.  There was also discussion about Bauer Field being rebuilt for 

multi-use, and about maybe utilizing Jaycee Field for a soccer field, with Ms. Shilling 

advising that the Jaycees will help with improvement to that field.   

Councilman Cioni advised, however, if that happens the girls softball team would have to be 

notified since they are planning on using Jaycee Field. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that the PowerPoint presentation would be on the City’s website tomorrow 

morning. 

 

III.        ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the work session adjourned at 5:35 p.m.  With a motion 

from Councilman Frazier, seconded by Councilman Cioni, the meeting moved into closed 

session. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 
Minutes approved on  



5 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 
2nd Floor Conference Room 
Tuesday, March 1, 2022; 5:40 p.m. 
  
The Mayor and City Council convened into Closed Session from the Open Work Session at 5:40 p.m. 
for an executive session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b)(3) of the General Provisions Article of the 
Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss the CEDC’s acquisition of a certain parcel of City-owned 
land. 
 
MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded by 
Council Member Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  
 
PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joseph 
George and Laurie Marchini. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 
Woodring, City Clerk 
 
 
 



6 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 
2nd Floor Conference Room 
Tuesday, March 8, 2022, 4:00 p.m. 
  
The Mayor and City Council convened in open session at 4:00 p.m. for the purpose of closing the 
meeting for an executive session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b)(3) of the General Provisions Article of 
the Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss the CEDC’s acquisition of a certain parcel of City-owned 
land, the acquisition of a property on Fayette Street to facilitate the renovation of the Fayette Street 
Bridge, and the acquisition of certain lots on the east side of the City. 
 
MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded by 
Council Member Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  
 
PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joe 
George, and Laurie Marchini. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Margie Woodring, 
City Clerk; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; and Kevin Thacker, Code Compliance 
Manager 
 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

Regular M&CC Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers, 57 N. Liberty St., Cumberland 

 

DATE:    March 15, 2022 

 

 

I. OPEN SESSION – 6:15 p.m. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

 Councilman Joseph P. George 

 President Raymond M. Morriss 

  

Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini was absent 

 

Also Present: Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator; Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk; Chuck 

Ternent, Chief of Police;  

  

IV. Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Statements of the Closed Sessions held March 1 and March 8, 2022 

Mayor Morriss announced that Closed Sessions had been held on March 1, 2022 at 5:40 

p.m. and on March 8, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. and read into the record a summary of those 

sessions which are attached hereto and made a part of these minutes as required under 

Section 3-306 (c)(2) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland. 

V. Presentations 

1.   Recognition of Pfc. Bronson Becker as the Cumberland Police Department's 2021 Officer  

      of the Year. 
 

Chief Ternent introduced the CPD’s Officer of the Year, Pfc. Bronson Becker, and 

provided information on how the program is run and how candidates are chosen.  The 



Chief provided background on Officer Becker, who joined the department in 2017, and 

serves on the Uniformed Patrol Division.  Chief Ternent stated that Officer Becker is 

consistently one of their top performers, has earned various awards, and is a member of 

several inter-departmental tactical teams.  Mayor Morriss presented the award to Officer 

Becker. 

VI. Director's Reports 

Motion to approve the reports was made by Councilman Frazier, seconded by 

Councilman George, and was passed on a vote of 4-0.                         

(A) Public Works 

 1. Maintenance Division monthly report for February, 2022 

(B) Fire 

1.   Fire Department monthly report for February, 2022 

(C) Police 

1.   Police Department monthly report for February, 2022 

(D) Utilities - Treatment Plants 

1.   Utilities Division F/W/S monthly report for February, 2022  

VII. Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes was made by Councilman George, seconded by 

Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

1. Approval of the Work and Closed Session Minutes of October 27, 2021 

VIII. New Business 

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Mr. Silka reviewed each item on the Consent Agenda, and Mayor Morriss called for 

questions or comments.  Motion to accept all items was made by Councilman Cioni,                         

seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

  Order 26,974 - accepting the bid from Burgmeier's Hauling, Inc. for the transportation and 

disposal of grit, scum and screenings from the John D. DiFonzo Water Reclamation Facility, 

City Project No. 11-21-WWTP, in the amount of $3,401 per month (lump sum) for the contract 

period July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2025, allowing for two additional 1-year extensions upon mutual 

agreement. 

   Mr. Silka advised that Burgmeier’s was the only bidder for this project. 

 Order 26,975 - accepting the bid of Harbel, Inc. for the Queen City Drive ADA Improvements 

Project (16-20-M) in the not-to-exceed amount of $59,692.50, contingent upon the release of 

CDBG funds. 

Mr. Silka advised that that this project includes sidewalk upgrades at the intersection of 

Queen City Drive and Bedford Street, including two ADA-compliant wheelchair ramps, 



and also includes sidewalk upgrades at Queen City Drive and Frederick Street, also 

including two ADA-compliant wheelchair ramps.  He stated that no other bids were 

received for this project. 

 Order 26,976 - accepting the proposal from Hite Associates, Inc. for the "WRF Head of Plant 

& Operations Building Roof Replacement Project" (5-22-WRF) in the estimated not-to-exceed 

cost of $112,237.59, procured through Gordian EZ IQC using NJPA pricing to solicit a 

competitive bid. 

  Mr. Silka advised that this project is fully funded through the Sewer Fund. 

 Order 26,977 - authorizing execution of Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Carl Belt, Inc. 

for the Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water Main Replacement Project (31-17-W) to add 160 

calendar days to the completion date, setting the new completion date at August 10, 2022. 

Mr. Silka advised that after the contract was awarded, the lead times for the piping were 

so far out in the distance that the project shut down over the winter. 

 Order 26,978 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into an agreement with the High 

Intensity Drug Trafficking Agency (HIDTA) to receive grant funding in the amount of $16,435 

for specific drug enforcement activities through their partnership with the Allegany County 

Narcotics Task Force. 

Mr. Silka advised that this is a continuation of an inter-agency agreement with HIDTA 

for drug interdiction. 

 Order 26,979 – authorizing the execution of a Grant Agreement with the MD Department of 

Housing and Community Development (DHCD) regarding their provision of a total amount not-

to-exceed $13,000 in grant funds to the City to be used for social media marketing, promotional 

videos, and directional signage and banners in conjunction with the Cumberland Main Street 

Revitalization Project. 

Mr. Silka advised that this funding will help provide assistance with signage and banners 

to help guide patrons through the downtown during construction, as well as promoting 

awareness for the downtown through marketing and videos. 

 Order 26,980 – authorizing the execution of a Grant Agreement with the MD Department of 

Housing and Community Development (DHCD) regarding their provision of a total amount not-

to-exceed $20,000 in grant funds to the City to be used to provide technical consulting 

assistance to Main Street businesses in conjunction with the Cumberland Main Street 

Revitalization Project. 

Mr. Silka advised that this funding will help to provide website and social media services 

to assist in strengthening businesses digital footprint to help combat the potential loss of 

foot traffic during construction. 

  Order 26,981 - designating the open space adjacent to the BMX facility in the Mason Sports 

Complex as the location of the skate park. 

 Mr. Silka advised that this order just designates the chosen location of the skate park, it 

does not authorize any funding or expenditure. 



 Order 26,982 - authorizing the abatement of City real estate taxes for City-owned properties at 

107/109 S. Allegany St., 471 Goethe St., 309 Fayette St., and 502 Regina Ave. 

IX. Public Comments 

Mark Nelson, Jr., 113 Decatur Street, advised that he wanted to discuss the process for filling 

vacancies on City boards and commissions, and said he specifically wanted to talk about the 

presence of a pedophile on the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC), Chris Myers.  He stated 

that Mr. Myers was convicted in 2012 of child pornography, and said he served five years in 

federal prison.  He wanted to know how Mr. Myers got on the board, what is the screening 

process, and wanted to know what Council was going to do about it. 

Mayor Morriss advised that Council is aware of the situation, and will be looking at 

changing the procedures to make sure it doesn’t happen again, and stated that they will 

seek out legal advice. 

Katherine Simpson, 13605 Uhl Highway, SE, spoke on behalf of her husband, Nathan Simpson, 

head coach of the Cumberland Renegades, and provided background on her family and their 

involvement in local sports. She spoke about their opposition to the location of the skate park, not 

to the skate park itself, and discussed how it would affect field use at Mason Sports Complex and 

their concern on possibly losing that location.  She read the agreements and handed out copies to 

M&CC. 

Mayor Morriss advised that Council takes community youth sports seriously, and said 

they will take her proposals under consideration.  He added that he will turn it over to 

staff and Parks and Recreation and see what the City can feasibly do. 

 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

X. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 

 

 Minutes approved on _______________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor  ______________________________ 

 

 ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk ____________________________ 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, March 15, 2022, 5:45 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, and Joe 

George.  Council Member Laurie Marchini was absent 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Chuck Ternent, 

Chief of Police.   Media:  Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News 
 

 

I. PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA REVIEW-MARCH 15, 2022 
  

Mayor Morriss reviewed the reports and minutes, and called for any questions or comments.  The 

Mayor mentioned the presentation to Pfc. Bronson Becker for Officer of the Year.  Mr. Silka 

asked if anyone had any questions about any of the Consent Agenda Orders, and said there were a 

couple of them that he wanted to break out and discuss:  

 

   Order 26,979 – authorizing the execution of a Grant Agreement with the MD Department of 

Housing and Community Development (DHCD) regarding their provision of a total amount not-

to-exceed $13,000 in grant funds to the City to be used for social media marketing, promotional 

videos, and directional signage and banners in conjunction with the Cumberland Main Street 

Revitalization Project. 

 Order 26,980 – authorizing the execution of a Grant Agreement with the MD Department of 

Housing and Community Development (DHCD) regarding their provision of a total amount not-

to-exceed $20,000 in grant funds to the City to be used to provide technical consulting 

assistance to Main Street businesses in conjunction with the Cumberland Main Street 

Revitalization Project. 

Mr. Silka advised that the funding from 26,979 will help provide assistance with signage 

and banners to help guide patrons through the downtown during construction, as well as 

promoting awareness for the downtown through marketing and videos, and said funding 

from 26,980 would be used to hire a consultant to provide technical assistance to 

businesses to help them adapt to potential loss of foot traffic during construction. 

 Order 26,981 - designating the open space adjacent to the BMX facility in the Mason Sports 

Complex as the location of the skate park. 

 Mr. Silka advised that this order just designates the chosen location of the skate park, it 

does not authorize any funding or expenditure. 

Mr. Silka advised that all other Consent Agenda items were pretty much business as usual. 

Councilman George asked if businesses with rear entrances would be promoted.  Mr. Silka 

advised that they would, and said the signage will advertise the different entrances.  Mayor 



2 
 

Morriss commented on the work Columbia Gas is doing on Baltimore Street, but said from what 

he’s heard they are cooperating with businesses. 

There was discussion on the skate board park site selection.  Mr. Silka advised that at the Parks 

and Recreation meeting there was a football group that attended to state their displeasure because 

they use that site for practice.  He stated that they may also be attending tonight’s regular 

meeting.  He said that other than that there had not been a lot of blow-back from the skate park 

presentation.  Mayor Morriss stated that whatever site is selected, someone will raise concerns.  

Council agreed that staff did a good job in their assessment of site location and surveying for 

public opinion.  It was noted that the Mason Sports Complex site is contingent upon funding, 

going forward. 

 

II.  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 

 

Councilman Frazier advised that the HRC is working on their Fair Housing event, and said that 

there is a vacancy on the board.  Ms. Woodring noted that advertisements for members had been 

posted on several boards and commissions and said she would be getting those names back to the 

M&CC for their consideration.  Councilman Frazier also advised about the annual HRDC 

banquet and said they will be going to different sites throughout the County and presenting 

awards to employees. 

 

Councilmen Frazier and Cioni are both on the Salvation Army board, and commented on the 

great work they do in the community.  Councilman Cioni requested a Proclamation be done for 

Salvation Army Week. 

 

Councilman Cioni discussed the Casino snack bar at the Constitution Park pool, saying that the 

current operator, Joyce Wormack, won’t be returning for the 2022 season.  It was noted that the 

City will be soliciting for those services through an RFP soon.  The Councilman also stated that 

the process to reserve pavilions at the park online is now active. 

 

There was discussion about Let’s Beautify Cumberland doing a fundraiser for a new lighted 

monument at Liberty Parklet off Maryland Avenue.  There was an idea mentioned to sell bricks 

for veterans to raise funds.  There was also discussion about the upcoming Day of Caring and 

Sharing on Friday, May 13th.  Councilman Cioni also mentioned that LBC is starting to attract 

some young people.  He also noted that Dave Roach is working on cleaning up the Riverside Park 

area, and has engaged with some of the homeless to help clean the area as well. 

 

Councilman George advised that the Planning and Zoning Commission will meet later this 

month. He also advised that the Allegany Museum board met last night, and said they are 

working on their 5-year strategic plan, which is almost finalized.  Mayor Morriss stated that the 

museum is looking to coordinate their marketing with Canal Place, DDC, WWSR and Allegany 

County Tourism, and said he thinks it’s a good initiative and in the best interest of all. 

 

Mayor Morriss advised that the Carver Center board will have its first meeting next Tuesday at 

City Hall.  He said there will be a discussion of the vision of what the board sees as far as what 

the center can be going forward.  He said the key will be to establish sustainability of the Carver 

Center and said some good ideas have been discussed such as training, employment 

opportunities, etc.  The Mayor stated that the building has some issues, but still has a lot of good 

usable space.   



3 
 

Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News, asked if there was going to be room for the Renegades 

Peewee Football team if the skate park goes in.  The Mayor replied that they use it as a practice 

field, and said there is room there.  Mr. Silka advised that the team’s game field is across from the 

proposed skate park site. 

 

III.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:07 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 
 Minutes approved  



File Attachments for Item:

1. Ordinance No. 3921 (2nd and 3rd readings) - authorizing execution of a deed to convey certain surplus

property that is the former site of the Memorial Hospital to the Cumberland Economic Development 

Corporation

















File Attachments for Item:

. Resolution R2022-04 - approving an application to the MD Department of Housing and Community 

Development for Community Legacy 2022 Projects totalling up to $150,412.57



 City of Cumberland 
- Maryland - 

RESOLUTION 
RESOLUTION NO. R2022-04 

 
Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland approving the application and receipt of 

financing for Community Legacy Project(s) (the “Project”) further described in the Community Legacy 

Application (“The Application”), to be financed either directly by the Department of Housing and Community 

Development (the "Department") of the State of Maryland or through other departments or agencies of the 

State of Maryland. 
 

WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland recognizes that there is a  

 significant need for reinvestment and revitalization of the communities in Allegany  

 County; and, 

 

WHEREAS,  the Department, either through Community Legacy or through other Programs of the  

 Department, or in cooperation with other State departments or agencies, may provide  

 some or all of the financing for the Project (the "Project Financing") in order to assist 

 in making it financially feasible; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the Project is located within a priority funding area under Section 5-7B-02 of the  

 Smart Growth Act and the Project will conform to the local zoning code; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the applicable law and regulations require approval of the Community Legacy Project  

  and the Project Financing by the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland  

  and, where appropriate, by the chief elected executive official of the local subdivision.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland hereby endorses 

the Project; and HEREBY approves the request for financial assistance in the form of a grant or loan, up to the 

amount of $ 150,412.57; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the chief elected executive official be, and is hereby requested to endorse 

this Resolution, thereby indicating his approval thereof; and,  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute documents and 

take any action necessary to carry out the intent of these resolutions; and,  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, copies of this Resolution are sent to the Secretary of the Department of 

Housing and Community Development of the State of Maryland. 
 

Given under our Hands and Seals this 21st day of June, 2022, with the  

Corporate Seal of the City of Cumberland hereto attached,  

duly attested by the City Clerk. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
 

Marjorie A. Woodring 
City Clerk 

  Mayor and City Council 
  Of Cumberland 

 
 
 

    Raymond M. Morriss 
   Mayor 



  

City of Cumberland  
2023 Community Legacy  

Project Recommendation List 
 
 

1. Allegany College of Maryland (ACM) College Center Loft Enhancement for 
Community and Workforce Development 

$          47,257 

2. Allegany Museum Commercial Kitchen      140,000 
3. Gordon Roberts House Museum Wall Repair           9,940 
 Total $   150,412.57 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Resolution R2022-05 - approving an application to the MD Department of Housing and Community 

Development for 2022 Strategic Demolition Funds in the amount up to $500,000 







File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,022 - authorizing execution of a Consent Agreement with Potomac Edison Company providing

terms by which the City shall be allowed to cross and/or occupy Potomac Edison transmission rights-of-

way with a combined sewer overflow (CSO) pipeline in conjunction with the 78" Parallel Pipeline from 

Mill Race to CSO Storage Project (19-16-S)



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     _27,022_                      DATE:       __June 21, 2022___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Consent Agreement 

by and between Potomac Edison Company (PE), a subsidiary of FirstEnergy Corporation, 

and Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, providing terms by which the City shall be 

allowed to cross and/or occupy Potomac Edison transmission rights-of-way with a 

combined sewer overflow (CSO) pipeline in conjunction with the 78” Parallel Pipeline 

from Mill Race to CSO Storage Project (19-16-S).  

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 6/21/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Right of Way Consent Agreement with Potomac Edison Company for City Project 19-16-S 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

The Right of Way Consent Agreement is between the Potomac Edison Company, a subsidiary of 
FirstEnergy Corporation, and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland.  The agreement allows the City 
to cross and/or occupy the Transmission Rights-of-Way with a combined sewer overflow (CSO) pipeline 
for the 78” Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to CSO Storage, City Project 19-16-S. This consent agreement 
shall become null and void if the Pipeline Work contemplated within the agreement is not completed by 
December 31, 2023 

Amount of Award: N/A 

Budget number: N/A 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: N/A 





















File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,023 - authorizing execution of a Resilient Maryland Program Grant Agreement with the MD 

Energy Administration (MEA) regarding the City's receipt of up to $100,000 to complete a study to 

analyze the feasibility and public benefit of a potential microgrid for the City; and to authorize the City 

Comptroller to accept the grant funding



 
- Order - 

of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     _27,023_                      DATE:       __June 21, 2022___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Resilient Maryland 

Program Grant Agreement with the Maryland Energy Administration (MEA) regarding 

the City’s receipt of up to One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), with an in-kind 

contribution of at least Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000), to complete a study to analyze 

the feasibility and public benefit of a potential microgrid for the City; and 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Comptroller be and is hereby 

authorized to accept the grant funding.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 

 

MEA Grant No. 2022-04-518S1 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: June 21, 2022 

Key Staff Contact: Raquel Ketterman 

 

Item Title:  MEA Grant 2022-04-518S1- Resilient Maryland Planning Grant (City Project 6-22-M) 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Authorizing Robert Smith, Director of Engineering and Utilities to execute the grant agreement and 
associated documents on behalf of the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, for the MEA Grant 2022-
04-518S1 – Resilient Maryland Program Cumberland. 

The purpose of this grant is to complete a project (study) to analyze the feasibility and public benefit of a 
potential microgrid for the City of Cumberland, Maryland. This community-based system would serve to 
provide resiliency for critical City infrastructure, including certain public safety and potential emergency 
shelter centers, as well as the City’s wastewater treatment plant. 
 
Over the next 9-12 months The City working with Optimize Renewables will characterize, assess, plan, 
and qualify a scale Microgrid system appropriate for Cumberland, while quantifying the health/safety 
and socio-economic benefits of such a system for the City, the underserved Cumberland community, and 
Appalachian Maryland. 
 

The MEA grant award is up to $100,000 with an in-kind contribution of at least $15,000.  

 

 

Amount of Award: Up to $100,000 

Budget number:  N/A 

Grant, bond, etc. reference:  Grant 



CITY OF CUMBERLAND
Microgrid Planning Project Timeline
Updated 2022-06-12

Planning Study Tasks MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG

Grant Proposal Submitted

MEA Proposal Consideration

MEA Awards Grant

Grant Agreement with MEA (if awarded)

Project Feasibility

     Implementation Barrier Analysis

Load Analysis

Engineering Analysis

Financial Analysis

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Analysis 

Economic and Public Benefit Analysis 

Microgrid Planning Study Completed

Final Deliverables

MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG

2022 2023



CITY OF CUMBERLAND 
Resilient Maryland Planning Grant (FY22 Round 2) 

 
 

Microgrid Preliminary Scope of Work 
Grant 2022-04-518S1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Cumberland, Maryland 
Microgrid Planning Grant 

 
June 12, 2022 



Purpose 
 

The purpose of this project is to analyze the feasibility and public benefit of a potential microgrid 
for Cumberland, Maryland. This community-based system would serve to provide resiliency for 
critical City infrastructure, including certain public safety and potential emergency shelter centers, 
as well as the City’s wastewater treatment plant.  
 

Our first objective is to protect the health and safety of our 19,076+ residents. Our wastewater 
plant is critically important to that charge. We also want to ensure the pumping and transmission 
function for the City’s raw water supply and wastewater functions. 
 

We also seek to provide resiliency for our Public Safety and First Responder functions, as well as 
other City buildings suited for emergency preparedness and recovery. 
 

The Cumberland wastewater treatment plant is also the City’s largest energy load, so there is the 
potential for energy savings utilizing energy efficiency measures, distributed energy resources, and 
technology optimization (although the low-cost energy profile of Western Maryland makes this 
somewhat more difficult). 
 

Bringing a non-functioning anaerobic digester back on-line at the plant will also serve our 
community well. 
 

Finally, there is the potential for significant Greenhouse Gas reduction, an objective of interest to 
our Mayor and City Council.  
 
This planning grant will enable a feasibility study for a sophisticated, resilient local grid that will 
enable us to determine the level of energy, optimal integration, and financial savings that the 
proposed system will provide to the City annually.  
 

The anticipated microgrid planning project will explore the use of ground-mounted Photovoltaic 
Solar arrays along with Battery Storage and an Energy Management System, to monitor, manage, 
and optimize energy usage for loads. Other potential renewable energy/efficiency solutions that 
will be explored include:  CHP, biomass/biogas, wind, and geothermal technologies. 
 

The energy economics of Western Maryland may preclude the level of savings that can be achieved 
where electricity rates are higher and spark spreads are greater, but nowhere in the state is more 
in need of the kind of resiliency that a microgrid can provide, particularly in times of crisis or the 
kinds of weather often seen in Western Maryland, especially as it relates to critical infrastructure.  
 



This interconnected system and associated distribution infrastructure is intended to provide clean, 
efficient, resilient power for Cumberland under normal, grid-connected circumstances, as well as in 
island-mode during a crisis. When the electrical grid is down, the system will keep the City’s critical 
loads up-and-running.  
 

Over the next 9-12 months we will characterize, assess, plan, and qualify a scale Microgrid system 
appropriate for Cumberland, while quantifying the health/safety and socio-economic benefits of 
such a system for the City, the underserved Cumberland community, and Appalachian Maryland. 
 
 
  



Project Description 
 

The anticipated Cumberland Microgrid will (likely) combine 2 MW of ground-mounted 
Photovoltaic (PV) Solar with an Energy Storage System, as well as an Energy Management 
Software Platform, to monitor, manage, and optimize energy usage for at least 2-3 significant 
City buildings as well as the wastewater system will be addressed for resilience opportunities. 
(We will also explore the possibility of adding other renewable generating assets that may 
enhance this system during the planning process.)  
 

As a part of this project, the City will work with the Maryland Emergency Management Agency 
(MEMA) to designate an additional building or buildings as a local emergency center to 
enhance the City’s preparedness and prevention, response, recovery, and mitigation activities , 
and to serve as a public-gathering place during a crisis. The microgrid will serve this 
designation by adding this building’s energy viability during such a situation. 
 

Ultimately, this group of interconnected loads and associated distributed energy resources 
(DERs) will act as a single, controllable unit with respect to the electrical grid, enabling it to 
operate in both grid-connected or island modes (including black start), providing clean, 
efficient, resilient power for Frostburg under normal, grid-connected circumstances, as well as 
for critical loads in island-mode during a crisis. 
 

  



Community Map 
 

 
 

The City of Cumberland is a community of 10.15 square miles. 
 
 
 
  



Wastewater System Schematic 
 
 

 
 
The city’s wastewater treatment plant is located at the east end of Offutt Street (on Candoc Lane) in 
South Cumberland, immediately downstream from the Mason Recreational Area. The facility is 
staffed around the clock, seven days per week. The plant is by far the largest energy load on 
Cumberland’s monthly books. 
 
The plant was originally constructed in 1957, expanded in 1976, and upgraded to Biological 
Nutrient Removal standards in 2002. Work to further upgrade the treatment capabilities of the 
plant to Enhanced Nutrient Removal standard was completed in 2011 at a cost of approximately 
$38 million. 
 
The city’s wastewater treatment plant was originally built as a primary treatment facility and was 
upgraded to secondary treatment in 1976. Additional Biological Nutrient Reduction (BNR) 
upgrades were completed in 2002, which added nitrogen and phosphorous reduction 
technologies, resulting in a reduction of nitrogen and phosphorous concentrations to 
approximately 8 mg/l and 2 mg/l respectively in the system’s treated water discharges.  
 
 



Nitrogen and phosphorous are the two most significant nutrient contaminants from wastewater 
that impair water quality in receiving streams. The plant’s Enhanced Nutrient Removal (ENR) 
technology effectively makes the plant a tertiary treatment system. The improvements reduce the 
nitrogen and phosphorous concentration levels in the system’s treated water discharges to the 
highest levels of current technology, which are approximately 3 mg/l and 0.3 mg/l, respectively. This 
results in a significant improvement in discharge water quality for the North Branch of the 
Potomac River. 
 
The city’s sewer system is regulated by MDE under an ongoing series of National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits. A NPDES permit authorizes the city to discharge 
treated effluent from the wastewater treatment plant into the receiving waters of the State, and 
establishes applicable limits on permitted contaminant levels for those discharges. Each permit is 
valid for five years from the date that it is issued, and the next application for a new permit should 
be submitted to MDE not less than one year prior to the expiration date. The city’s next NPDES 
permit application is due to be submitted in 2013. 
 
The current NPDES permit contains specific contaminant limits for the treatment plant (which 
includes flows from all outside systems as well as the city). The permit specifies limits in the form of 
monthly averages for certain contaminants that may vary during certain parts of the year, as well as 
total maximum annual loading levels and loading ranges (maximum and minimum) for other 
contaminants. Now that the ENR system has been activated, the system’s maximum permitted 
annual loads were reduced to 182,734 pounds of nitrogen and 13,705 pounds of phosphorous, 
which are within the design parameters of the city’s system. 
 
There is an anaerobic digestor on-site that is currently non-functional. 
 
In addition to resiliency considerations, bringing this system back on-line will enhance the overall 
operation. 
 
  



Scope of Work 
 

The purpose of this project is to conduct analysis on the feasibility and public benefit of a 
potential City of Cumberland Microgrid. 
 
Project viability will be determined through a multi-disciplinary approach designed to identify 
and address system development opportunities, barriers, and economics, and ultimately to 
produce integrated, actionable project plans for the City of Cumberland.  
 
In order to provide a solid foundation for operational design, technology, engineering, and 
system integration, planning will encompass a broad array of regulatory, legal, market, and 
strategic influences, in addition to the technical, economic, and process factors. Specifically, 
this feasibility study will consist of six distinct, interdependent planning components: 
 
1. Project Feasibility 
 

Including functional objectives and use cases; existing infrastructure analysis; generation 
sources; project characterization; policy impacts; legal and regulatory compliance issues. 
 

§ Assessment of community requirements 
§ Assessment of existing power delivery system 
§ Assessment of existing water delivery system 
§ Assessment of energy vulnerability 
§ Assessment of appropriate distributed energy resources  
§ Data collection and site investigation 
§ Research historical reliability of local services  
§ Identification of physical system constraints 
§ Identification of utility/interconnection constraints 
§ Identification of local regulation/policy impact 
§ Identification and characterization of project benefits 
§ Identification of project risks and mitigants 
§ Examination of growth and expansion considerations 

 
2. Load Analysis 

 

Including detailed technical analysis and current control methodology. 
 

§ Identification of usage history and behavior 
§ Identification of other local critical facilities 
§ Identification of equipment types, ratings and operating conditions 
§ Identification of existing generation sources 



§ Identification of utility load profiles 
§ Model energy management (efficiency) 
§ Model potential equipment using ‘virtual test drives’ 

 
3. Engineering Analysis 

 

Including technical validation of power engineering and operations; functional objectives 
and use-case requirements; as well as optimal systems integration. 

 

§ Identification of current system infrastructure 
§ Identification of potential equipment 
§ Identification of potential resources 
§ Energy modeling 
§ Preliminary engineering and design (Microgrid configuration) 
§ Modeling integration 
§ Identify potential interconnection points with utility grid (prelude to negotiation) 
§ Identification of expected operational improvements 
§ Identification and analysis of risks and mitigants 
§ Black start considerations 
§ Identification of technical and operational alternatives 

 

4. Financial Analysis 
 

Including microgrid project economics; cost-benefit analysis; Federal, State, and local 
incentives; ownership considerations; structured finance; contracting; and servicing (O&M). 

 

§ Modeling projected energy generation 
§ Modeling projected energy efficiency gains 
§ Modeling projected energy cost savings 
§ Economic modeling and analysis of the microgrid system 
§ Identification of applicable state, local, and utility incentives 
§ Project structured-finance modeling 
§ City of Cumberland ownership modeling 
§ Third-party ownership modeling 
§ Identification of projected cost, savings and resiliency impacts 
§ Preparations to leverage additional public and/or private resources 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5. Greenhouse Gas Reduction Analysis 
 

Including methodological definition and impact on the City and its sustainability objectives, 
as well as on the Cumberland community, and the State of Maryland. 

 

§ Selection of appropriate Greenhouse Gas (GHG) accounting tools/methodologies 
§ Modeling projected GHG Emissions-reduction 
§ Equipment life-cycle assessment 
§ Analysis of sustainability impacts 
§ Creation of sustainability strategy recommendations for Cumberland 

 
6. Economic and Public Benefit Analysis  

 

Including holistic economic and social benefits to the City and the Cumberland community, 
Allegany County, and Western Maryland. 

 

§ Assessment of economic impact 
§ Assessment of reliability/power quality benefits 
§ Assessment of regional environmental impact 
§ Enumeration of resiliency and critical infrastructure benefits 
§ Assessment of social benefits 
§ Assessment of workforce development considerations and application 
§ Assessment of academic considerations 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

1 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

MARYLAND ENERGY ADMINISTRATION 

RESILIENT MARYLAND PROGRAM 

 

STATE OF MARYLAND 

MARYLAND ENERGY ADMINISTRATION 

1800 Washington Boulevard, Suite 755 

Baltimore, MD 21230 

 

hereinafter “MEA” 

 

and 

 

Mayor & City Council of Cumberland 

57 N Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

hereinafter “Grantee” 

 

PREMISES 

 

 The Maryland Energy Administration (“MEA”) administers the Strategic Energy 

Investment Program set forth in Md. Code Ann., State Government §§ 9-20B-01 et. seq. as a 

component of its overall mission to reduce energy demand and increase energy efficiency and the 

use of renewable energy resources. MEA has established the Resilient Maryland Program 

(“Program”) to drive the adoption of microgrid and other distributed energy resource (“DER”) 

systems that provide cleaner, more affordable, and reliable power to key entities and infrastructure 

across the State of Maryland. The Program is designed to attract entities seeking highly reliable, 

resilient, clean and affordable energy, including: businesses, nonprofit organizations, local and 

State government facilities, hospital and medical facilities, electric distribution utilities, academic 

and institutional organizations, regional planning organizations, agricultural and food production 

operations, low-to-moderate income (“LMI”) multifamily housing communities, and others where 

such power solutions are necessary for optimal operation in both normal and grid outage situations. 

Grant funds are provided to assist with costs associated with conducting feasibility analysis, 

preliminary engineering, planning, design, cost-benefit analysis, and other non-capital 

preconstruction costs as defined by the Program Funding Opportunity Announcement (“FOA”). 

 

 On February 1, 2022, MEA issued an FOA for a second application period for the Fiscal 

Year 2022 Program. Eligibility is limited to nonresidential Maryland entities that are legally 

authorized to transact business and operations within the State of Maryland. MEA evaluated each 

eligible application on a competitive basis using the following factors as established by the FOA 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

2 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

(“Evaluation Criteria”): value proposition, greenhouse gas reduction potential, energy savings 

potential, energy resilience benefits, benefits provided to Marylanders who are LMI, and the 

applicant’s level of contribution to the proposed project.  

 

 Projects are considered under three (3) Areas of Interest: (1) Community & Campus 

Microgrids, (2) Resilient Facility Power Systems, and (3) Resiliency Hubs. 

 

 MEA has evaluated Mayor & City Council of Cumberland’s Application and supporting 

documents and has selected Grantee to receive a Grant Award under the Program, as defined 

herein, subject to Grantee’s completion of the Project, more thoroughly described in Section 2, 

and compliance with all requirements, terms, and conditions of this Agreement and the Program. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Purpose of the Grant 

 

The purpose of this MEA Resilient Maryland Grant (“Grant”), which falls under 

the Program’s “Area of Interest 1: Community & Campus Microgrids”, is to provide 

Grantee funding for the costs associated with certain preconstruction activities as 

referenced and described in Section 2 and as described in Attachment B (hereafter “the 

Project”). The Project is in furtherance of siting a Community Microgrid to be located 

in Allegany County, MD that will provide energy and energy services for functions, 

as needed, at Grantee’s wastewater plant, raw water pumping system, wastewater 

pumping system, public safety and first responder functions, and buildings suited for 

emergency preparedness.  

 

2. Project Description and Costs Eligible for Reimbursement 

 

A. Project Components 

 

i) The Project includes, but is not limited to, the following preconstruction 

activities: conducting feasibility analysis, preliminary engineering and 

designs; financial modeling; greenhouse gas reduction analyses; 

analyses of legal and strategic barriers to a Community Microgrid; 

implementation and proposed mitigation to address identified barriers; 

and other activities necessary to support these activities.  The Project is 

more specifically described in the Scope of Work (Attachment B), 

which is incorporated and made part of this Agreement. 

  

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

3 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

ii) The Community Microgrid will be located at one or more Grantee-

controlled sites within the City of Cumberland, MD, that will provide 

energy and energy services for functions, as needed, at Grantee’s 

wastewater plant, raw water pumping system, wastewater pumping 

system, public safety and first responder functions, and buildings suited 

for emergency preparedness. 

 

B. Costs Eligible for Reimbursement  

 

i) Only those costs or expenditures incurred by Grantee for the Project, as 

defined by Section 1 of this Grant Agreement, are eligible for 

reimbursement under this Grant (Reimbursable Costs). Capital costs 

associated with the DER system equipment, components, or installation 

costs are not eligible. 

 

ii) All Reimbursable Costs must be incurred by Grantee no later than June 

30, 2023. 

 

3. Amount and Duration of the Grant 

 

A. The Grant Award shall not be greater than One Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($100,000) or eighty-five percent (85%) of the Project’s total cost, whichever 

is less. The Grant Award amount will be determined by MEA at its discretion 

after considering the Project budget, the Project scope of work, and Grantee’s 

resource contribution to the Project, which is described in Section 4. 

 

B. Unless an extension is permitted as described in Section 3 of the General 

Provisions (Attachment A), Grantee shall complete all activities and submit all 

required final deliverables and reporting documentation to MEA by July 31, 

2023. 

 

4. Grantee’s Resource Contribution 

 

A. Grantee shall contribute resources to the Project with, at a minimum, a value of 

fifteen percent (15%) of the Project’s total cost.    

 

B. Grantee shall provide verification of its contribution as specified in Section 5 

of this Agreement. 

 

C. Grantee’s resource contribution shall be in one of the following forms: 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

4 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

i. A cost match of at least 15% of the Project’s total cost. 

ii. Donated labor with a market value of at least 15% of the Project’s total 

cost. 

iii. A form of contribution with a market value of at least 15% of the 

Project’s total costs that has been approved in writing by MEA.  

 

5. Reporting Requirements and Reimbursement  

 

A. Within thirty (30) days of the Grant Agreement’s Effective Date, as defined in 

Section 2(B) of the General Provisions, Grantee shall submit the following 

items to MEA for review and approval: 

 

i. A preliminary work plan detailing the specific tasks, milestones, 

deadlines, and strategies that must be completed in order to produce the 

Final Deliverables described in Attachment B (Scope of Work); 

 

ii. A proposed timeline for Project completion in the form of a Gantt chart 

or similar spreadsheet diagram highlighting the activities (tasks or 

events) displayed against time; and 

 

iii. A Project budget that, at a minimum, specifies each expenditure by cost 

category and line item. The Project budget must be for the entire cost of 

the Project and include the Grant award amount and all other sources of 

Project funds, as may be applicable. 

 

B. If Grantee is using a contractor to carry out work under the Grant Agreement, 

Grantee shall submit to MEA, in writing, the name and address of the contractor 

chosen by Grantee within thirty (30) days of selecting the contractor.   

 

C. Grantee shall submit a completed Monthly Progress Report (Attachment C) to 

MEA by the tenth (10th) day of each month directly following the reporting 

period, or the next business day if the 10th falls on a weekend or State Holiday 

(as defined by the Maryland Department of Budget and Management). 

 

D. Reimbursement of Reimbursable Costs 

 

Consistent with Sections 8 and 9 of the General Provisions, upon verification 

of a Reimbursement Request submitted by Grantee, MEA will reimburse 

Grantee for Reimbursable Costs included in the request consistent with the 

following provisions. 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

5 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 

i. To request reimbursement, Grantee shall submit to MEA a complete and 

accurate Reimbursement Request form (Attachment D), with all 

required supplemental attachments. 

 

ii. Included with the Reimbursement Request, Grantee shall provide 

documentation of all Reimbursable Costs requested as evidenced by a 

third-party invoice or by Grantee’s invoice, if Grantee is performing 

the work under the Grant Agreement. 

 

iii. Upon completion of the Final Deliverables described in the Scope of 

Work (Attachment B), Grantee shall submit the Final Deliverables 

Report to MEA, which shall include a complete Final Deliverables 

Submission Cover Page form (Attachment E); a final Reimbursement 

Request, consistent with the requirements of Section 5(D)(i) of this 

Grant Agreement; and a copy of each Final Deliverable. 

 

iv. Only eighty percent (80%) of the Grant Award will be available for 

disbursement to Grantee prior to Grantee’s submission of its complete 

Final Deliverables Report.  MEA will make available the remaining 

twenty percent (20%) of the Grant Award after MEA verifies the Final 

Deliverables Report’s compliance with content and quality 

requirements. 

 

E. Consistent with Section 5 of the General Provisions (Attachment A), Grantee 

shall submit reporting information required by the Grant Agreement to 

RMP.MEA@Maryland.gov unless otherwise specified in the Grant Agreement.  

Any document mailed to MEA regarding this Project shall be sent to: 

 Maryland Energy Administration 

Attn: Resilient Maryland Program 

1800 Washington Boulevard, Suite 755 

Baltimore, MD 21230 

6. Party Representatives 

 

The following individuals shall have the authority to act under this Grant Agreement for 

their respective parties, subject to all necessary approvals: 

  Brandon Bowser, Energy Resilience Program Manager 

  Maryland Energy Administration 

  (443) 306-0304 

mailto:RMP.MEA@Maryland.gov


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

6 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

  BrandonW.Bowser@Maryland.gov 

  (Or any other person as may be designated by the Director of MEA). 

Robert Smith, Director of Engineering 

Mayor & City Council of Cumberland 

(301) 759-6601 

robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov 

(Or any such person as may be designated in writing by Grantee’s Mayor). 

7. General Provisions 

The General Provisions of the Grant Agreement set forth in Attachment A are 

incorporated and made part of this Grant Agreement. 

 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S 

OFFICE AT MEA. NO CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS, ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO 

THIS AGREEMENT ARE AUTHORIZED ABSENT SPECIFIC WRITTEN AGREEMENT 

BY THE PARTIES AND APPROVAL BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE AT 

MEA. ANY UNAUTHORIZED CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THIS 

FORM AGREEMENT WILL RENDER MEA'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT VOIDABLE AT MEA'S ELECTION. 

 

 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

 

 

 

  

  

mailto:BrandonW.Bowser@Maryland.gov
mailto:robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

7 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, WITNESS the hands and seals of the parties. 

MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

By: __________________________________      Date: _________________ 

            Raymond Morriss, 

 Mayor 

 

MARYLAND ENERGY ADMINISTRATION  

  

By: __________________________________      Date: _________________ 

            Mary Beth Tung, Ph.D., Esq. 

 Director  

 

Approved for Form and Legal Sufficiency 

  

This ________ day of __________________, 2022  

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

Sondra McLemore, 

 Assistant Attorney General 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

8 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

9 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

10 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

11 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

12 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

13 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

14 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

15 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

16 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

17 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

ATTACHMENT B to Grant 2022-04-518S1 

“Scope of Work” 

 

Maryland Energy Administration (MEA) 

Resilient Maryland Program 

 

Mayor & City Council of Cumberland 

 

The Mayor & City Council of Cumberland (“Grantee”) has been selected to receive this 

Resilient Maryland Grant for the analysis of feasibility, planning, and design of a Community 

Microgrid.  

 

 

1. PROJECT  

 

A. This Community Microgrid will consist of distributed energy resources (“DERs”) 

located at one or more Grantee-controlled sites within the City of Cumberland, 

MD that will provide energy and energy services for functions, as needed, at 

Grantee’s wastewater plant, raw water pumping system, wastewater pumping 

system, public safety and first responder functions, and buildings suited for 

emergency preparedness, hereinafter referred to as “the Project Site”, which is 

defined in Section 1(G) of the General Provisions (Attachment A).  

 

B. The Grant is awarded to help pay the costs of producing the Final Deliverables, 

described in Section 3 of this Scope of Work (entitled “Final Deliverables”). These 

Final Deliverables shall be submitted to MEA at the conclusion of the Project 

consistent with the deadlines established in the Grant Agreement. 

 

2. PROJECT PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

A. Within one hundred twenty (120) days of the Execution of this Grant Agreement 

by MEA, Grantee shall submit to MEA a roster of individual Project stakeholders 

that will serve on a committee to provide oversight of the management and 

administration of the Project on behalf of the Grantee (hereafter “Project Planning 

Committee”). The Project Planning Committee shall include, at minimum, a 

Grantee representative and an individual representative for reach respective 

organization that would receive electrical and/or thermal energy from the 

Community Microgrid upon installation and commissioning. 

 

B. The Grantee shall solicit input from the local electric utility regarding the Project 

and is encouraged to include a representative of the local electric utility on the 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

18 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

Project Planning Committee. MEA reserves the right to require, upon written 

request, that Grantee make a good faith effort to include a representative of the local 

electric utility on the Project Planning Committee. 

 

C. Grantee shall actively engage, and consult, with the Project Planning Committee 

when applicable and beneficial to the outcomes of the Project.  

 

D. Grantee shall include in each Monthly Progress Report, a summary of the Planning 

Committee’s activities, including but not limited to, engagement with the local 

electric utility (and natural gas/fuel utility provider, if applicable) and consultation 

with Grantee regarding the management and administration of the Project. 

 

3. FINAL DELIVERABLES  

 

Grantee shall produce each Final Deliverable described below. A Final Deliverable may 

be modified through the execution of an Amendment to the Grant Agreement consistent 

with Section 26 of Attachment A to the Grant Agreement. 

 

A. Feasibility Report: Grantee shall produce a full feasibility report on at least 

one (1) configuration of a Community Microgrid to serve the facilities 

included in the Project Site. The Feasibility Report shall include, at a minimum: 

 

i. A description of the facilities to be served by the Community 

Microgrid; 

 

ii. For each facility considered in the analysis, quantitative historical data 

for at least twelve (12) consecutive months of electricity usage, and, if 

applicable, thermal energy usage (e.g. natural gas, fuel oil, etc.) as well 

as the associated costs incurred by facility owners; 

 

iii. For each facility considered in the analysis, a description of each 

energy efficiency upgrade opportunity and energy efficiency upgrade 

completed within five (5) years prior to the Effective Date of this Grant 

Agreement; 

 

iv. A detailed description of the proposed Community Microgrid 

configuration (or configurations, if multiple are considered) including 

but not limited to the selected DERs, associated control and 

management systems, and utility grid interconnection equipment; 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

19 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

v. For the entire Community Microgrid, projected annual, month-by-

month: energy production and fuel consumption (as applicable), 

thermal savings (which shall be shown as negative if there is a net 

increase in thermal fuel consumption); 

 

vi. The proposed total cost for full Community Microgrid 

implementation with budgetary breakdown by at minimum: final 

engineering and design costs, equipment costs, labor costs, permitting 

and inspection fees, utility interconnection fees, site preparation costs, 

installation costs, and final commissioning costs; 

 

vii. A description of secured and/or potential sources of capital (such as in-

kind funds, third-party funds, incentives from MEA, incentives from 

the utility, etc.) that can be used to finance capital cost of the 

Community Microgrid; 

 

viii. A brief summary of the anticipated regulatory, legal, and strategic 

barriers that must be mitigated in order to achieve successful 

implementation of the Community Microgrid; and 

 

ix. A proposed timeline for complete Community Microgrid installation 

and commencement of Community Microgrid operation if 

successfully installed. 

 

B. Preliminary Engineering and Design(s): Grantee shall produce preliminary 

engineering data and design(s) for at least one (1) Community Microgrid 

configuration to serve the facilities included in the Property. This deliverable 

shall include, at minimum: proposed physical location(s) of the Community 

Microgrid system components, system component specifications and related 

technical data, generation asset nameplate capacities and parasitic loads, 

control/management system(s) technical data and configuration(s), one-line 

diagram(s), and Community Microgrid design drawings. Any additional 

information which is required to vet the technical and engineering accuracy and 

integrity of the Community Microgrid shall be included in this deliverable. 

 

C. Pro Forma Financial Model: Grantee shall produce a twenty (20) year pro 

forma financial model of the Community Microgrid project. The pro forma 

shall specify sources of capital and projected costs and revenues associated with 

operation of the Community Microgrid. Model assumptions shall be clearly 

documented and justified with accredited sources of data where applicable. The 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

20 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

model shall provide metrics that gauge financial viability, which may include 

but are not limited to net present value (NPV) analysis, internal rate of return 

(IRR) analysis, and simple payback analysis. The model shall specify the 

weighted average cost of capital (WACC) as well as each of the annual 

percentage rates (APRs) on debt capital, as applicable. 

 

D. Greenhouse Gas Reduction Report: Grantee shall produce a report that 

quantitatively projects the amount of greenhouse gas emissions that will be 

avoided as a result from successful implementation of the Community 

Microgrid over a twenty (20) year period commencing from the projected date 

of implementation. This report shall include, at minimum: annual avoided tons 

of carbon dioxide (CO2), nitrous oxide (NOx), sulfur oxide (SOx), and volatile 

organic compounds (VOCs). If producing multiple Community Microgrid 

configurations, Grantee shall produce a single Greenhouse Gas Reduction 

Report for each configuration. 

 

E. Implementation Barriers Report: Grantee shall produce a report that 

discusses statutory, regulatory, legal and/or other strategic barriers which must 

be analyzed and mitigated to achieve successful installation of the Community 

Microgrid (known as “implementation barriers”). This report shall explain 

each identified implementation barrier and how it impacts installation of the 

Community Microgrid, and shall discuss possible pathways to resolve those 

barriers. All questions and comments from Project Planning Committee 

members regarding the implementation barriers shall be listed and described in 

this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

21 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 
Resilient Maryland Program 

Monthly Progress Report Form 

 

MEA encourages Resilient Maryland Grantees to submit their Monthly Progress Reports 

online via the MEA Resilient Maryland Monthly Progress Reporting Portal1.  

 

However, if preferred, Grantees may submit their Monthly Progress Reports utilizing this form instead. 

 

Section 1: Reporting Period & Grantee Information 

 

Reporting Month  Year  

 

MEA Grant Number*  

*The Grant number specified on the Grant Agreement (e.g. 2022-00-518S1) 

Organization (Grantee) Name as Reported on IRS Form W9 Federal Tax ID Number 

  

Grantee Address as Reported on IRS Form W9 City 

  

State Zip Code State Congressional 

District* 

(If applicable) 

MD Legislative 

District* (If applicable) 

MD     

Contact Name Contact Title 

  

Phone Number Email Address 

  

*Find your Congressional and MD Legislative Districts at www.mdelect.net   

Section 2: Project Status Update 

 

Project Progress Summary 

Please provide detailed information regarding project status below. 

 

Milestone Completion Checklist 

Check off each milestone that has been completed as of the end of the reporting month. 

☐ Project Schedule (Due 30 days from Grant Execution).  

☐ Majority Contractor Procurement. 

☐ 25% Project Completion 

☐ 50% Project Completion 

☐ 75% Project Completion 

☐ 100% Project Completion 

                                                
1 https://form.jotform.com/211125856736054 

ATTACHMENT C 

MEA Grant No. 2022-04-518S1 

https://form.jotform.com/211125856736054
http://www.mdelect.net/
https://form.jotform.com/211125856736054


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

22 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 

Description of Progress 

In the space below, please detail your progress on the relevant project milestones above. Please describe 

progress on all Final Deliverables referenced in Attachment B to the Grant Agreement and indicate any 

challenges/obstacles encountered and planned actions to overcome. 

 

 

 

 

Job Hours Worked 

Please provide the number of hours worked by the respective parties toward the completion of the Final 

Deliverables below. Job hours should be inclusive of all hours pertaining to actual Final Deliverable 

completion and the administrative time required to further the Project. 

Grantee  

Contractor(s)  

Subcontractor(s)  

 

Section 3: Project Schedule Progress 

 

Please note any changes to the Project Schedule below, and if any dates have changed, please supply an 

updated Project Schedule using the same format as the initial schedule as an attachment to this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 4: Grant Funds Reimbursement Information 

 

Do you intend to submit a request for Reimbursement of Grant funds with this report? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No 

If yes, for what amount?  

$  

REMINDER – ELIGIBILITY FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF GRANT FUNDS 

Only costs that are consistent with the following requirements are eligible for reimbursement of Grant funds. 

● Costs directly incurred by Grantee (i.e. invoiced); 

● Costs directly attributable to the completion of the specified Project Final Deliverables, set forth in 

Attachment A (FY20 Grantees) or Attachment B (FY21 and all subsequent Grantees); 

● Costs for projected future expenses yet to be incurred will not be reimbursed; 

● Equipment costs for a distributed generation and/or storage system will not be eligible for 

Reimbursement of grant funds; and 

● MEA will only disburse Grant funds to Grantee for eligible expenses up to the amount specified in the 

Grant Agreement.   

 

SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT 

FORM TO MEA AT RMP.MEA@MARYLAND.GOV. 

mailto:RMP.MEA@MARYLAND.GOV


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

23 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 

Resilient Maryland Program 

Reimbursement Request Form 

 

MEA encourages Resilient Maryland Grantees to submit their Reimbursement Requests 

online via the MEA Resilient Maryland Reimbursement Request Portal2.  

However, if preferred, Grantees may submit their Monthly Progress Reports utilizing this form instead. 

Section 1: Reporting Period & Grantee Information 

 

Reporting Month  Year  

 

MEA Grant Number*  

*The Grant number specified on the Grant Agreement (e.g. 2022-00-518S1) 

Organization (Grantee) Name as Reported on IRS Form W9 Federal Tax ID Number 

  

Grantee Address as Reported on IRS Form W9 City 

  

State Zip Code County Congressional 

District* 

(If applicable) 

MD Legislative 

District* (If applicable) 

     

Contact Name Contact Title 

  

Phone Number Email Address 

  

*Find your Congressional and MD Legislative Districts at www.mdelect.net   

Section 2: Reimbursement Amount & Signature 

Reimbursement Request from MEA 

$  
By signing this invoice, I affirm that the costs for which I have requested reimbursement are directly 

attributable to the Project Description pursuant to Attachment A (FY20 Grantees) or Attachment B (FY21 and 

all subsequent Grantees) of the Grant Agreement and that all applicable terms, conditions, and requirements 

of the Grant Agreement have been met. I affirm that I have correctly itemized all costs on the second page of 

this Reimbursement Request. 

Signature of Authorized Representative OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

 

X 

 

☐ OK TO PAY 

AMOUNT:  

Printed Name Title Date Signed  

 

   MEA PM APPROVAL 

SIGNATURE 

                                                
2 https://form.jotform.com/211404308895153 

ATTACHMENT D 

MEA Grant No. 2022-04-518S1 

https://form.jotform.com/211404308895153
http://www.mdelect.net/
https://form.jotform.com/211404308895153


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

24 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

Section 3: Itemized Cost Information 

In the table below, list each itemized cost for which you are requesting reimbursement. Please attach all 

invoices/requests for payment from contractors related to each cost and, if applicable, supply the invoice 

number in the “Contractor Invoice No.” box. If additional lines are needed, you may add as many as necessary 

to the table below. 

 

Line Item No. 

(e.g. “01”) 

Description Contractor 

Invoice No. 

Amount 

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

   $  

TOTAL $  

 

 

REMINDER – ELIGIBILITY FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF GRANT FUNDS 

Only costs that are consistent with the following requirements are eligible for reimbursement of Grant funds. 

● Costs directly incurred by Grantee (i.e. invoiced); 

● Costs directly attributable to the completion of the specified Project Final Deliverables, set forth in 

Attachment A (FY20 Grantees) or Attachment B (FY21 and all subsequent Grantees); 

● Costs for projected future expenses yet to be incurred will not be reimbursed; 

● Equipment costs for a distributed generation and/or storage system will not be eligible for 

Reimbursement of grant funds; and 

● MEA will only disburse Grant funds to Grantee for eligible expenses up to the amount specified in the 

Grant Agreement.   

 

 

SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 
FORM TO MEA AT RMP.MEA@MARYLAND.GOV. 

mailto:RMP.MEA@MARYLAND.GOV


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

25 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

 

Resilient Maryland Program 

Final Deliverables Submission Form 

 

Section 1: Project Completion & Submission Dates 

 

Project Completion Date  

Final Deliverables Submission Date  

 

Section 2: Grantee Information 

MEA Grant Number*  

*The Grant number specified on the Grant Agreement (e.g. 2022-00-518S1) 

 

Organization (Grantee) Name as Reported on IRS Form W9 Federal Tax ID Number 

  

Grantee Address as Reported on IRS Form W9 City 

  

State Zip Code State Congressional 

District* 

(If applicable) 

MD Legislative 

District* (If applicable) 

     

Contact Name Contact Title 

  

Phone Number Email Address 

  

*Find your Congressional and MD Legislative Districts at www.mdelect.net   

Section 3: Final Deliverables Checklist 

Listed below are the Final Deliverables required under the Grant Agreement, per Attachment A 

(FY20 Grantees) or Attachment B (FY21 and all subsequent Grantees). Please attach each 

deliverable to this report in your submission. 

Check Final Deliverable 

☐ [ENTER TITLE OF DELIVERABLE HERE] 

☐ [ENTER TITLE OF DELIVERABLE HERE] 

☐ [ENTER TITLE OF DELIVERABLE HERE] 

☐ [ENTER TITLE OF DELIVERABLE HERE] 

☐ [ENTER TITLE OF DELIVERABLE HERE] 

☐ [ENTER TITLE OF DELIVERABLE HERE] 

Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

X 

 

Printed Name Title Date Signed 

   

ATTACHMENT E 

MEA Grant No. 2022-04-518S1 

http://www.mdelect.net/


Grant 2022-04-518S1 
 

26 

 

DRAFT COPY 

NOT FOR EXECUTION 

Section 4: Final Thoughts, Comments, and Feedback 

 

In the space below, please detail any final comments, obstacles, questions, and/or feedback you 

would like to provide to the Resilient Maryland program. MEA values all Grantee feedback on this 

important pilot program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FINAL DELIVERABLES 
SUBMISSION FORM WITH ALL FINAL DELIVERABLES TO 

MEA AT RMP.MEA@MARYLAND.GOV. 
 

 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

 

 

 

mailto:RMP.MEA@MARYLAND.GOV


File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,024 - declaring certain Fire Department equipment to be surplus and authorizing it to be 

scrapped or donated



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,024                        DATE:   June 21, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of  

certain equipment that has been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council authorize this equipment to be 

scrapped or donated; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the following equipment is hereby declared to be surplus 

property and authorized to be scrapped or donated: 

 

30-40 year old various pieces of worn-out Fire Department equipment of no 

value – to be scrapped 

 

Holmatro Rescue Equipment, old and outdated – to be scrapped 

 

25 Air Packs; 25 Face Pieces; 49 Air Cylinders that no longer meet NFPA 1981 

standards – to be donated to international fire departments that do not follow 

US standards. 

 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 











File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,025 - authorizing the City Comptroller to commit and pay $20,000 a year for three (3) years to 

the Canal Place Concert Series Project



 
- Order - 

of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     _27,025_                      DATE:       __June 21, 2022___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the City Comptroller be and is hereby authorized to commit and pay 

Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) per year for three (3) years to the Canal Place Concert 

Series Project.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 

 

 







File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,026 - adopting a revised City of Cumberland Fund Balance Policy, effective June 21, 2022



 
- Order - 

of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     _27,026_                      DATE:       __June 21, 2022___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the attached and revised City of Cumberland Fund Balance Policy be and 

is hereby adopted and effective June 21, 2022. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment – Revised Fund Balance Policy 



Council Agenda Summary 
Meeting Date: June 21, 2022 

Key Staff Contact: Ken Tressler and Mark Gandolfi 

Item Title: 

City of Cumberland – Fund Balance Policy Revision 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc. for Council: 

A revision to certain sections of the City’s fund balance policy to address auditor comments that clarify 
the assignment of funds, better defines surplus, replaces “are” with “may” to provide less restrictive 
language, add the order of expenditure of funds (i.e., restricted, then unassigned or committed, then 
assigned, then unassigned) and remove outdated terms (i.e., designate and undesignated).  

 



1  

Redline Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
City of Cumberland 

Fund Balance Policy 
Effective June 21, 2022 

 

Purpose: 

For increased financial stability, the City of Cumberland desires to manage its financial 

resources by establishing fund balance ranges for selected funds. This will help ensure the 

City maintains a prudent level of financial resources to protect against reducing service 

levels or raising taxes and fees because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unexpected 

one-time expenditures. 

 

Definitions: 

Fund Balance - Fund balance means the difference between fund assets and fund 

liabilities. Fund balance is also referred to as net assets; 

 

Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) 

or are required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of an endowment fund); 

 

Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 

(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through 

constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation; 

 

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government 

itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, 

amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same 

highest-level action to remove or change the constraint; 

 

Assigned fund balance – amounts intended to be used by the government for specific 

purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed amounts; 

may be assigned by the governing body or by an authorized official; 

Assigned fund balance-amounts a government intends to use for a specific 

purpose; intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body 

to which the governing body delegates the authority; 

 



2  

Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are 

reported only in the general fund; 

 

Net Positions - the difference between fund assets and fund liabilities. Net position is 

another term for fund balance;  
 

Unrestricted Net Position - in proprietary funds is roughly equivalent to unassigned fund 

balance in governmental funds; however, in the case of proprietary funds unrestricted net 

position does not necessarily represent funds available for appropriation. This is due to the 

fact that some of the unrestricted net position offset capital assets such as buildings and 

equipment; 

 

Fund Balance Range - the range of amounts this policy has set within which the City 

means to maintain the unassigned fund balance; 

 

Expenditure - all uses of financial resources, budgeted for any purpose, and include 

operating and capital expenses, debt service, and transfers to other funds; 

 

Operating Expenditures - uses of financial resources for personnel, supplies, services and 

materials, and exclude capital expenses, debt service, and transfers to other funds. 

 

Restricted Net Position - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 

(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional 

provisions, or by enabling legislation. Restricted net position is equivalent to restricted 

fund balance; 

Surplus - an amount above the upper limit of the fund balance range for any fund. 

Shortfall - an amount below the lower limit of the fund balance range for any fund. 
 

Fund Balance Range: 

It is the goal of the City to achieve and maintain an unreserved unassigned General Fund 

balance equal to 25.0% of expenditures. The City considers a balance of less than 5.0% to be 

cause for concern, barring unusual or deliberate circumstances. The amount set here is based 

on the predictability of revenues, volatility of expenditures, and liquidity requirements of the 

General Fund and may need to be reviewed periodically. 

 

In calculating monitoring the ratio of undesignated unassigned fund balance to proposed 

expenditures, the current year budgeted expenditures will be compared with the prior year's 

unassigned fund balance by dividing the unassigned fund balance in the latest audited 

Comprehensive Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (CAFRACFR) shall be compared 

with by the total budgeted General Fund expenditures in effect when the CAFR ACFR is 

released. Further, when preparing the budget for the coming fiscal year, the projected 

unassigned fund balance shall be similarly compared with the proposed budget expenditures to 

identify the projected shortfall or surplus in unassigned fund balance. In essence this will mean 

the current year budgeted expenditures will be compared with the prior year's undesignated 

fund balance. 

 



3  

Unrestricted net position in proprietary funds does not necessarily represent resources 

available for appropriation. This is due to the fact that capital assets are included in proprietary 

funds and are offset in unrestricted net assets. Since it is not likely the organization will sell the 

capital asset in order to fund operations, its value is not available for appropriation. In order to 

take this into account when calculating the ratio related to the fund balance range, staff will 

identify the portion of unrestricted position that does not represent resources available for 

appropriation and consider the amount "designatedcommitted". 

 

Fund Balance Plan: 

The attainment of the General Fund Balance Range will be implemented achieved as operating 

funds allow over during the upcoming fiscal years. It is recognized that the fiscal constraints 

and current economic environment will may limits the City's ability to attain or maintain the 

desired fund balance. The progress toward obtaining this desired fund balance will be gradual 

but directed. 

 

Maintenance: 

In the event that the undesignated unassigned general fund balance is so calculated to be 

less than the policy anticipatesrequires, the City shall plan to adjust budget resources in 

the subsequent fiscal years to restore the balance to the fund balance range. Except in 

extraordinary circumstances, undesignated unassigned fund balance should not be used to 

fund any portion of the ongoing and routine year-toyear operating expenditures of the 

City. It should be used primarily to insure adequate designated reserves, to respond to 

unforeseen emergencies, to provide cash flow, and to provide overall financial stability. 

 

Assignment of Fund Balances: 

In the event that there is a need to assign a portion a of fund balance for a specific 

expenditure or purpose, the authority for to make the an assignment of the fund balance 

shall be designated by the Comptroller’s. Such assignment shall be submitted in writing to 

the City Administrator prior to the issuance of the CAFR ACFR for the respective fiscal 

year. 

 

Order of Expenditure of Funds: 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 

fund balance are available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first.  

When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund 

balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of 

committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the 

Mayor & City Council have provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment 

functions. 

 

Surplus: 

If it is determined there is a surplus in the fund balance (an amount above the upper limit 

of the fund balance range for any fund), the funds are tomay be designated assigned, 

committed or appropriated for the following purposes in order of priority: 

 

1. Eliminate shortfalls in related funds. Any General Fund surplus shall may be 



4  

transferred to cover shortfalls within other Special Revenue Funds, other 

Governmental Funds or Proprietary Funds. Any Utilities Operating Fund surplus 

shall may be transferred to the General Fund based on the percentage of retention 

as determined by the City Comptroller, and approved by the City Administrator. 

 

2. Reduction or avoidance of debt. If there is short-term debt within the fund, the 

surplus may be applied to reduce or eliminate the debt if financial analysis proves 

this to be advantageous for the City. If a borrowing is scheduled, the surplus may 

be used to reduce the principal amount the City needs to obtain if financial 

analysis proves this to be advantageous for the City. 

 

3. Applied to a replacement program. Surplus funds may be used to supplement or 

enhance a capital replacement program such as vehicle, personal computer, or 

heavy equipment replacement, or any other capital replacement program initiated 

by the City. 

 

4. One-time capital needs. Since a surplus does not represent a recurring source of 

revenue it should not be used to fund a recurring expense; however, if a one-time 

capital expenditure has been identified, but not already funded through an 

appropriation, the surplus may be appropriated for this use. 

 

5. Tax, fee, or rate stabilization. Surplus funds may be designated assigned, 

committed or appropriatedfor stabilization in order to avoid raising taxes, fees, or 

rates related to the fund in subsequent years. 

 

Shortfall: 

If it is determined there is a shortfall (an amount below the lower limit of the fund balance 

range for any fund), the fund balance is to be rebuilt through the following mechanisms in 

order of priority: 

 

1. Distribution of surplus from other related funds as delineated under 

"Surplus" category. 

 

2. An appropriation reduction during the next annual budget process of at least 20% 

of the lower limit of the fund balance range until the lower limit has been reached. 

If this is financially infeasible, a plan to restore the fund balance to an amount 

within the range within a reasonable time frame. This plan may require reduction 

of services, increases in taxes, fees, or rates, or some combination thereof. 

 

Fund Creation: 

The authority for the management, creation and consolidation of existing and new funds is 

specifically delegated to the City Comptroller. The City Comptroller shall submit any 

change among the existing fund structure to the City Administrator for review. The 

consolidation of funds for reporting purposes shall be managed by the City Comptroller. 

 

 



5  

Fund Balance Policy Amendments: 

Any amendments to this Fund Balance Policy shall be subject to the review and approval 

of the Mayor and City Council, upon the recommendation of the City Administrator and 

City Comptroller. 

 

Effective Date: 

This policy is effective June 30, 2015 June 21, 2022. The implementation of this policy 

will be managed, recognizing that the desired fund balances will be achieved as funds 

become available and that this policy will be utilized as the principleprincipal guide for 

obtaining the desired fund balances.



1  

Blackline Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
City of Cumberland 

Fund Balance Policy 
Effective June 21, 2022 

 

Purpose: 

For increased financial stability, the City of Cumberland desires to manage its financial 

resources by establishing fund balance ranges for selected funds. This will help ensure the 

City maintains a prudent level of financial resources to protect against reducing service 

levels or raising taxes and fees because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unexpected one-

time expenditures. 

 

Definitions: 

Fund Balance - the difference between fund assets and fund liabilities; 

 

Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) 

or are required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of an endowment fund); 

 

Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 

(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through 

constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation; 

 

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government 

itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, 

amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same 

highest-level action to remove or change the constraint; 

 

Assigned fund balance – amounts intended to be used by the government for specific 

purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed amounts; 

may be assigned by the governing body or by an authorized official; 

 

Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are 

reported only in the general fund; 

Net Position - the difference between fund assets and fund liabilities. Net position is another 

term for fund balance;  



2  

Unrestricted Net Position - in proprietary funds is roughly equivalent to unassigned fund 

balance in governmental funds; however, in the case of proprietary funds unrestricted net 

position does not necessarily represent funds available for appropriation. This is due to the 

fact that some of the unrestricted net position offset capital assets such as buildings and 

equipment; 

 

Fund Balance Range - the range of amounts this policy has set which the City means to 

maintain the unassigned fund balance; 

 

Expenditure - all uses of financial resources, budgeted for any purpose, and include 

operating and capital expenses, debt service, and transfers to other funds; 

 

Operating Expenditures - uses of financial resources for personnel, supplies, services and 

materials, and exclude capital expenses, debt service, and transfers to other funds. 

 

Restricted Net Position - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 

(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional 

provisions, or by enabling legislation. Restricted net position is equivalent to restricted 

fund balance; 

Surplus - an amount above the upper limit of the fund balance range for any fund. 
 
Shortfall - an amount below the lower limit of the fund balance range for any fund. 

 

Fund Balance Range: 

It is the goal of the City to achieve and maintain an unassigned General Fund balance equal to 

25.0% of expenditures. The City considers a balance of less than 5.0% to be cause for concern, 

barring unusual or deliberate circumstances. The amount set here is based on the predictability 

of revenues, volatility of expenditures, and liquidity requirements of the General Fund and may 

need to be reviewed periodically. 

 

In monitoring the ratio of unassigned fund balance, the current year budgeted expenditures will 

be compared with the prior year's unassigned fund balance by dividing the unassigned fund 

balance in the latest audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) by the total 

budgeted General Fund expenditures in effect when the ACFR is released. Further, when 

preparing the budget for the coming fiscal year, the projected unassigned fund balance shall be 

similarly compared with the proposed budget expenditures to identify the projected shortfall or 

surplus in unassigned fund balance.  

 

Unrestricted net position in proprietary funds does not necessarily represent resources available 

for appropriation. This is due to the fact that capital assets are included in proprietary funds and 

are offset in unrestricted net assets. Since it is not likely the organization will sell the capital 

asset in order to fund operations, its value is not available for appropriation. In order to take 

this into account when calculating the ratio related to the fund balance range, staff will identify 

the portion of unrestricted position that does not represent resources available for appropriation 

and consider the amount "committed". 

 

 



3  

Fund Balance Plan: 

The attainment of the General Fund Balance Range will be achieved as operating funds allow 

during the upcoming fiscal years. It is recognized that the fiscal constraints and current 

economic environment may limit the City's ability to attain or maintain the desired fund 

balance.  

 

Maintenance: 

In the event that the unassigned general fund balance is calculated to be less than the 

policy requires, the City shall plan to adjust budget resources in the subsequent fiscal years 

to restore the balance to the fund balance range. Except in extraordinary circumstances, 

unassigned fund balance should not be used to fund any portion of the ongoing and routine 

year-toyear operating expenditures of the City. It should be used primarily to respond to 

unforeseen emergencies, to provide cash flow, and to provide overall financial stability. 

 

Assignment of Fund Balances: 

In the event that there is a need to assign a portion of fund balance for a specific 

expenditure or purpose, the authority to make an assignment of the fund balance shall be 

the City Comptroller’s. Such assignment shall be submitted in writing to the City 

Administrator prior to the issuance of the ACFR for the respective fiscal year. 

 

Order of Expenditure of Funds: 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 

fund balance are available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first.  

When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund 

balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of 

committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the 

Mayor & City Council have provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment 

functions. 

 

Surplus: 

If it is determined there is a surplus in the fund balance (an amount above the upper limit 

of the fund balance range for any fund), the funds may be assigned, committed or 

appropriated for the following purposes in order of priority: 

 

1. Eliminate shortfalls in related funds. Any General Fund surplus may be transferred 

to cover shortfalls within other Special Revenue Funds, other Governmental Funds 

or Proprietary Funds. Any Utilities Fund surplus may be transferred to the General 

Fund as determined by the City Comptroller, and approved by the City 

Administrator. 

 

2. Reduction or avoidance of debt. If there is short-term debt within the fund, the 

surplus may be applied to reduce or eliminate the debt if financial analysis proves 

this to be advantageous for the City. If a borrowing is scheduled, the surplus may 

be used to reduce the principal amount the City needs to obtain if financial 

analysis proves this to be advantageous for the City. 

 



4  

3. Applied to a replacement program. Surplus funds may be used to supplement or 

enhance a capital replacement program such as vehicle, personal computer, or 

heavy equipment replacement, or any other capital replacement program initiated 

by the City. 

 

4. One-time capital needs. Since a surplus does not represent a recurring source of 

revenue it should not be used to fund a recurring expense; however, if a one-time 

capital expenditure has been identified, but not already funded through an 

appropriation, the surplus may be appropriated for this use. 

 

5. Tax, fee, or rate stabilization. Surplus funds may be assigned, committed or 

appropriated to avoid raising taxes, fees, or rates related to the fund in subsequent 

years. 

 

Shortfall: 

If it is determined there is a shortfall (an amount below the lower limit of the fund balance 

range for any fund), the fund balance is to be rebuilt through the following mechanisms in 

order of priority: 

 

1. Distribution of surplus from other related funds as delineated under 

"Surplus" category. 

 

2. An appropriation reduction during the next annual budget process of at least 20% of 

the lower limit of the fund balance range until the lower limit has been reached. If 

this is financially infeasible, a plan to restore the fund balance to an amount within 

the range within a reasonable time frame. This plan may require reduction of 

services, increases in taxes, fees, or rates, or some combination thereof. 

 

Fund Creation: 

The authority for the management, creation and consolidation of existing and new funds is 

specifically delegated to the City Comptroller. The City Comptroller shall submit any 

change among the existing fund structure to the City Administrator for review. The 

consolidation of funds for reporting purposes shall be managed by the City Comptroller. 

 

Fund Balance Policy Amendments: 

Any amendments to this Fund Balance Policy shall be subject to the review and approval 

of the Mayor and City Council, upon the recommendation of the City Administrator and 

City Comptroller. 

 

Effective Date: 

This policy is effective June 21, 2022. The implementation of this policy will be 

managed, recognizing that the desired fund balances will be achieved as funds become 

available and that this policy will be utilized as the principal guide for obtaining the 

desired fund balances. 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,027 - authorizing the Mayor to execute a services agreement with Turnbull, Hoover & Kahl, 

P.A. for the provision of audit servides for Fiscal Years 2022-2024 for the amounts not to exceed 

$114,975 for Year 1, $121,975 for Year 2, and $128,975 for Year 3



 
- Order - 

of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     _27,027_                      DATE:       __June 21, 2022___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a service agreement with 

Turnbull Hoover & Kahl, P.A., for the provision of audit services for Fiscal Years 2022 

through 2024 for the following yearly amounts not to exceed: 

 

Year 1 ……………… $114,975.00 

Year 2 ……………… $121,975.00 

Year 3 ………………. $128,975.00 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 































File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,028 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute all FY23 Employment Agreements for 

part-time employees



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,028                     DATE:    June 21, 2022_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute all FY23 

Employment Agreements for part-time employees of the City of Cumberland. 

 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 

 
 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,029 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute all Seasonal Employment Agreements for 

the 2022 spring/summer season



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,029                      DATE:    June 21, 2022_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute all Seasonal 

Employment Agreements for the 2022 spring/summer season; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that said agreements shall not exceed six (6) months 

from the date of execution. 

 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 

 
 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,030 - authorizing execution of Outdoor Dining Leases for the use of the public right-of-way 

for outside cafe dining for one (1) year with Mezzos, City Lights American Grill and Bar, Embassy 

Theater Corp., Uncle Jack's Pizzeria and Pub, and Baltimore Street Grill



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,030                     DATE:    June 21, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute Outdoor Dining 

Lease Agreements by and between the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

and: 

Coachs Entertainment Enterprises, LLC t/a Mezzos 

Shafco t/a City Lights American Grill and Bar 

Embassy Theater Corporation 

Uncle Jack’s Pizzeria and Pub 

Baltimore Street Grill 

 

detailing terms for the use of the public right-of-way immediately in front 

of and adjacent to each property for outside café dining for a one (1) year term 

effective June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 
 


	Top
	1.	Statement of closed meeting
	1.	Retirements
	.	Report - Engineering Div. Monthly Report, May 2022
	2022-5 Eng Div Monthly Report

	.	Report - Maintenance Division Monthly Report - May 2022
	Maint. Div. Report for M_001

	.	Report - Fire Dept. Monthly Report - May 2022
	SKM_C25822061413370

	.	Report - Police Dept. Monthly Report, May 2022
	May 2022

	.	Report - Util. Div. F/W/S Monthly Report - May 2022
	SKM_C25822061513470

	1.	Minutes - Work-Feb. 15; Work, Closed, Reg.-Mar. 1; Closed-March 8; Reg. March 15, 2022 2022
	Work Session Mins-AgendaReview_ARPA_Hab-4-Hum_CHG_M&CC Updates 02-15-22
	M&CC Regular Meeting Minutes 03-01-22
	Work Session Mins-Agenda Rev.; Skatepark 03-01-22
	2022-03-01 Closed Session Minutes - BACK SUMMARY PAGE ONLY
	2022-03-08 Closed Session Minutes-BACK SUMMARY PAGE ONLY
	M&CC Regular Meeting Minutes 03-15-22
	Work Session Mins-AgendaRev-M&CC Updates 03-15-22

	1.	Ordinance No. 3921 - Memorial Hospital transfer
	Ordinance 3921 - Memorial Hospital Transfer

	.	Reolution R2022-04 Community Legacy Applicatoiin 2022
	Res 2022-04 Community Legacy

	.	Resolution R2022-05 - Strategic Demo Funds 2022
	Resolution R2022-05

	.	Order 27,022 - Right of Way Consent Agreement with Potomac Edison Company for City Project 19-16-S
	2022-06-221 Order 27022 Potomac Edison Consent Ageement
	Agenda Worksheet
	WR29497 Consent Agreement with Exhibits

	.	Order 27,023 MEA Grant 2022-04-51851 Resilient Maryland Planning Grant, City Project 6-22-M
	2022-06-21 Order 27023 Reslient MD Planning Grant
	Council Agenda Worksheet
	MEA_Resilient_Maryland_CMB_03_Preliminary_Timeline_2022-06-12 V02
	MEA_Resilient_Maryland_CMB_01_Preliminary_Scope-of-Work_2022-06-12_V02
	2022-04-518S1 - Mayor and City Council of Cumberland - DRAFT Agreement (2)

	.	Order 27,024 - Surplus Fire Dept. Equipment
	2022-06-21 Order 27024 Surplus fire dept. equipment
	SKM_C25822061317160
	SKM_C25822061315010

	.	Order 27,025 - Canal Place Concert Series
	2022-06-21 Order 27025 Canal Place Concert Series Project
	Canal Place Concert Series Project

	.	Order 27,026 - Revised Fund Balance Policy
	2022-06-21 Order 27026 Fund Balance Policy Revised
	Agenda Summary - Fund Balance Policy Revision
	Revised Fund Balance Policy - red and black lined with Council Order _6_21_22

	.	Order 27,027 - Turnbull audit
	2022-06-21 Order 27027 Turnbull Hoover audit
	Summary THK Audit Services
	THK Audit Services

	.	Order 27,028 - FY23 Part-Time Employees
	2022-06-21 Order 27028 part time employees

	.	Order 27,029 - FY23 Seasonal Employees
	2022-06-21 Order 27029 Seasonal Employees

	.	Order 27,030 - Outdoor dining leases
	2022-06-21 Order 27,030 Outdoor Dining Leases

	Bottom

